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SENATOR FORSYTHE: Gentlemen, I 

will call this hearing to order, and I will at this time read 

an opening statement to set the stogu for the proceedings 

which we expect to carry out in these next two weeks. 

This State and this Nation are 

faced with the most startling increases in crim~ in our his-

torya Our system of administering criminal justice is chal-

lenged as never before. 

The people of New Jersey, and 
' 

the people of all other states with similar problems are ex-

pressing great concern for their safety and for the safety of 

their familieso That concern also is directed at governments 

response to crime, whether it be through the system or in 

I social programs directed at causes of crime~ Are they effec-

tive? Can they be improved? 

The central reason for this con-

cern is both elementary and deeply disturbing. It starts with 

the fear of our citizenso 

In the not too distant past our 

citizens dreaded entering certain neighborhoods in certain 

citieso They dreaded traveling certain routes during certain 

hours of the nighto Today this fear is far more wide-spread 

for growing numbers of the citizenry. Neighborhoods in our 

smallest communities know crime as well as in our large 

citieso And fear does not depart as the sun rises, for many, 
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even when they are within their own homes. 

As Legislators, we must take 

steps to get at the roots of the crime problem in New Jer

sey. Today, we embark upon what can only be considered a 

first step toward these objectives. 

The sessions which have been 

scheduled within the next two weeks have been designed 

to scrutinize our existing systems of law enforcement and 

the administration of criminal justicsa We must know if 

these systems are adequate for today's needs, for today 1 s 

problems. 

Our goal is the restoration 

of a peaceful climate for all our people. 

To achieve this goal, there 

would be little gained by placing a spotlight on notori

ous criminals and racketeers if our present system of law 

enforcement and justice are not adequate to remove these 

persons from our midst. We do not conceive ourselves to 

be engaged in a notorious adventure of some sort. We are 

determined that these hearings will be held with dignity 

and respect for the serious subject which is the Commit

tee's concern. 

Therefore, this first step 

is taken at the invitation of the Governor in his annual 

message to the Legislature to examine and evaluate the 

• 

I 

• 
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present systems. We will do that. 

'Should the present approaches 

to crime control in New Jersey be found lacking, the Com-

mittee will recommend appropriate remedial steps to the 

respective houses of the legislature. 

We embark upon an educational 

process for ourselves and for the public. 

We ask and seek the co-opera-

tion of all men and women of New Jersey, be they public 

officials or private citizens. 

I think at this point it would 

be appropriate to introduce the members of the Committee 

this morning; and to my left is Senator Wayne Dumont of 
,. 

the 15th District; Senator Lynch, 1th District; Assembly-

man Thomas, lOth District. To my right is Eliot Lumbard, 

our chief consultant to this Committee, arid Senat'or 

McDermott, 9th District; Senator Walder, 11th District; 

Assemblyman Rinaldi; and to my rear and left is Assembly-

man Gavan of the 9th District, Senator Kelly of the 12th 

District, Assemblyman Dickey of the 3rd District, and I 

believe that accounts for the members present at this 

moment. 

At this point we welcome as 
., 

our first witnes~ the Attorney General of the State of 

New Jersey, the Honorable Arthur J. ·sills. And, Mr. 
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Attorney General, as will be the case with all of the 

witnesses that we ask to appear before us, would you mind 

being sworn to the testimony that you are about to give? 

GEN. SILLS: Not at all. 

A R T H U R J. S I L L S, Attorney General of the State 

of New Jersey, was sworn by Senator Forsythe and testified 

as follows: 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Mr. Attorney 

General, do you have a statement that you would like to 

make to the Committee? 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Well, I 

have this, Mr. President. As you know, you and Mr. Lumbard 

came to see me and indicated to me the areas in which you 

desire that I present something to the Committee. 

As I understood it, the first 

area about which you were concerned was that of the juris

diction of my department. The Attorney General is a con

stitutional officer who serves as the sole legal advisor 

to the State and all of its departments, divisions and 

agencies, and is the head of the Department of Law and 

Public Safety. 

He possesses all of the 

powers and duties which devolve upon the Attorney General 

of England, in addition to and not inconsistent with 

those delegated to him by statutory enactment. He is 

" 
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charged generally with the obligation of enforcing the pro

visions of the Constitution and all of the laws of this 

State with certain relevant statutory exceptions and per

forming all of the duties conferred and imposed upon him by 

law • 

Now, I assume, of course, that 

you are concerned mostly with his criminal jurisdiction. 

Generally speaking, the county prosecutor has the legal 

obligation of prosecuting the criminal business of the 

state within his county. Except, that the Attorney General 

may include the duties and responsibilities of the county 

prosecutor in certain instances: 

(1) And this is by statutory 

enactment; when there ia a vacancy in the office of the 

prosecutor. 

And I might note parenthet

ically, that since 1962 my office has for short periods 

of time performed the duties of county prosecutors in 

Hudson County, Somerset County, Camden County, Ocean 

County, Atlantic County and Hunterdon County. These were 

instances when there were, of course, vacancies in the 

office of the prosecutor. 

(2) The Attorney General 

may assume duties and responsibilities at the written re

quest of the county prosecutor. About 90% of the criminal 
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litigation which is handled by my office is obtained by 

virtue of such requests. 

(3) The writt~n request of 

the assignment judge of the SUperior Court, and since I've 

been in office no, that's not accurate--in the last 

two years I think two such matters have been presented 

to my office by virtue of written requests of the assign

ment judge. The other two instances·would be: 

(4) At the written request 

of the Board of Chosen Freeholders, and I have received 

no such requests since I've been in office. 

(5) The direction of the 

Governor, which generally is unnecessary, because if 

my office is concerned with a particular case, we call 

the prosecutor and it generally falls into the second 

category, he asks us to take over the case. 

Now, whenever the Attorney 

General must assume the function of the county prosecutor, 

when that office is vacant, he has all of the powers dele

gated by law to the prosecutors, including the authority 

to appoint temporary legal assistants, investigators and 

other personnel. As a matter of fact, whenever the Attor

ney General has taken over, because of the vacancy, he 

has kept in office and worked with all of the legal assis

tants, investigators and other personnel who were in the 

office at that point. 

• 

• 
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In terms of supervision, it 

is mandatory that all county prosecutors make annual re

ports to the Attorney General concerning the performance of 

their duties. These reports which reflect the prosecutor's 

office workload are collected and collated by people in 

my office annually and are distributed to public officials, 

legislators, libraries and other interested official author

ities. The prosecutors are also obligated to make such 

other reports to the Attorney General as he may from time 

to time request. And I might note again parenthetically 

that in the past we have requested and still receive 

periodically the following types of reports: 

(1) Quarterly gambling re

ports. We get monthly gambling reports from every police 

chief in the State. 

(2) Reports concerning the 

nature -- now this goes back through the years -- we 

have had reports concerning, for example, the nature of 

the enforcement of the abortion laws; the reports of the 

impact of Mapp against Ohio, Miranclcj:Jgainst Arizona, 

reports concerning various organized crime activities 

in various areas, reports concerning the effectiveness 

of the assigned counsel system, the need for the public 

defenders office, reports concerning the implied consent 

law, reports concerning the need for a state medical 
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examiner, and, of course, as you know, the Legislature 

passed such a law last year. Reports concerning the impact 

of Gault against Arizona, reports concerning anticipated 

civil rights problems, and reports of variances in the 

State where state police evidence is suppressed by a court, 

or wherein the prosecutor intends to enter an acquittal in 

a matter initiated by the State Police. These are just 

instances where reports from time to time are requested 

from my office and are furnished by the prosecutor. There 

are many, many more, but I have given to you a sampling 

of the reports I have asked for from 1962 to date. In 

fact, the very last one I gave you was a result of a re~ 

cent incident where the Supreme Court of our StatA was 

aware of an instance where a prosecutor had not appealed 

from the suppression of evidence in a given case where 

the State Police were involved, and now we request every 

prosecutor to report to us where there is such a motion 

and it is successful, or where he intends to enter an 

acquittal, and then he consults with me prior thereto. 

In addition to this, in the Summer of 1963 my office in

stituted a law enforcement intelligence unit which was 

repertorial in nature, which required from the prosecu

tors the answers to three questions that concern them~ 

selves strictly with gambling. The first question con

cerned itself with those who had been convicted in the 

• 

• 
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particular jurisdiction of a chief of police. The second 

concerned itself with names and addresses and locations of 

all suspected operators and operations, together with a 

brief description ofmodus operandi and associations. And, 

thirdly, a list of motor vehicle registration numbers of 

all automobiles suspected of being used in such activities 

and such other information as the chief deems to be perti

nent. These reports are given monthly from the chiefs to 

the prosecutors and then forwarded to our L.E.I.U. After 

being scanned by our L.E.I.U., these r:·;Htr~:c •·mre then 

sent over to the State Police Investigative Unit contained 

therein for such action which they deem appropriate. In 

the last two years there have been some changes with re

spect thereto, and I'll get to that in a little while. 

The L.E.I.U., such as it 

existed in my office, is being merged, if it already hasn't 

been done so, presently into a different system which has 

been setup within the organization of the State Police 

themselves. And as I say, we will get to that in a little 

moment when I get to the State Police as such. 

Now, in addition to the 

prosecutorial duties, the Attorney General, as I indicated, 

is the head of the Department of Law and Public Safety, 

and, as such, he is in charge of the activities of the 

Division of Law, the Division of State Police, the Division 
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of Alcoholic Beverage Control, Division of Motor Vehicles, 

Division of Weights and MeAsures, Division on Civil Rights, 

Division of Professional Boards end the Office of Medical 

Examiners. 

You can see, Mr. Lumbard, it 

is somewhat different from the duties and obligations of 

Mr. Lefkowitz of the State of New York. 

MR. LUMBARD: It is not exactly 

like the Attorney General of England, either. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: There 

are the inherent commonwealth pouers wh:i.ch the At~:orney 

General has, for example, one of my predecessors 

in office 8stablished a precedent in the State in the case of 

Wilentz against Hendrickson, where it was determined that 

the Attorney GenerAl and Mr. Lnfkowitz in New Yor~ take 

the same attitude when he goes after fraudulent consu-

mer deals ,thc:t the Attorney General is the guardian of 

the people., 

Within a division of law 

may be found the State's legal office, also the Bureau of 

Securities, the Office of Consumer Protection, the Escheat 

Bureau and the Bureau of Claims. Now, each of these divi

sions which I have mentioned, I have mentioned specifically 

since in one form or another they have certain law enforce

ment functions, and further there is a continuous coordina-

• 

.. 
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1964. We have another man with a law degree and a member 

of the Bar of the District of Columbia, a veteran, and an 

F.B.I. agent from 1942 to 1966. Another man, a high school 

graduate, who took courses at Rutgers University, with the 

Health Department Section and holds a New Jersey license 

as a Health Inspector. Another man who is o graduate 

accountant, was an I.R.S. agent from 1935 to 1965, he was Assis-

tant Regional Commissioner of Intelle~ence in the Bcst~n area. 

We have another man who has an A.A. in police science, a 

B.A. in education, was a police officer from 1955 to 1964 

and an investigator with the Waterfront Commission from 

1964 to 1966. Another, ttJho has ~ college education, and, 

from 1940 to 196?in the I .R .S .Intelligence Division, he 

was an acting regional co-ordinator; another man who is 

on retirement from the New Jersey State Police, has a 

high schooleducation and was with the New Jersey State 

Police from 1938 to 1954, he was a credit investigator 

from 1959 to 1963, was an investigator for the highway 

department from 1964 to 1966 and served as a special 

agent for the Army Counter-intelligence Corp.; another 

man, college, three years of college with specialized 

training in criminology at Army and private schools, he 

has had continuous investigative work since 1945 with 

the Military C.I.D., Division of Motor Vehicles and the 

Alcoholic Beverage Control. Another man with the C.I.S. 
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since December of 1959, high school graduate, three and 

a half years of college. He also worked with the 1ureau 

of Securities since 1962, and, as a matter of fact, is work

ing with that right now. 

This gener2lly indicctes the 

character of tho men tuho are working with the C.I.S. now. 

They are divided so th2t four are here 

in Trenton and six are assigned to Consumer Fraud 

and two to the 

Bureau of Securities, however, they are used interchange

ably where necessary. As a m2tter of fact, one man now 

working with Consumer Fraud, a Mr. Cox who was with the 

F.B.I., has been used for very special assignments in our 

office. 

That generally indicates 

the jurisdiction of the Attorney General's office. Now, 

you also asked me for resources, and I'll commence first 

with th•--I've given Ju the criminal investigation staff 

in my of lee as such. 

Now, the State Police, at 

the present time the total strength is 1248. Our total 

authorized strength -- there's a little dispute going on 

now as to whether it's 1303 or 5 or 4 less than that and 

this comes about as a result of some meetings which we've 

had with the Atlantic City Expressway$ They're having 

• 

• 

• 
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some difficulty down there and we believe their compli-

ment should be a total of 22,and,I believe they're having 

some difficult~ especially in the winter months,and are 

asking us to pickup on our budget, I believe, four men, 

which accounts for some of the discrepancy at the moment. 

But as we view it, the men useable to us is a total author-

ized strength of 1295 and we have a vacancy of 47. We 

requested in our budget,for '68-'69,220 new men. 60 new 
far, 

troopers allowed thus/unless I can be more fortunate 

than others and you're in a position to find somebody, I'm 

in a position now of hoping to appear before the Legisla-

tive Appropriations Committee on Thursday and ask them 

that we get more than the 60 whichhavebeen allowed to us 

by Budget. 

Now, with respect to the 

Criminal Investigation Section in the Division of State Police, 

just for three years, I'll give you the assignments for 

1~65, 147; in 1966,166 and 1967,212. As I indicated to 
Police police 

you,the Division of State/ 'has its full/power, is author-

ized to enforce any law or order anywhere in the State. 

Of course, a great portion of the dutiesrevolve them-

selves around highway patrol work, so that you'll find the 

greatest compliment to be on the highways rather than in-

valved in criminal work as such. As I indicated,there are 

212 men at the present time so engaged. 
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This does not mean that we do 

not take men from highway work and put them into criminal 

work when occasion demands. It also does not mean that 

the men on the highway are not involved in criminal activi

ties,because they are,and,as a matter-of-fact, as you are 

aware, in the State of New Jsrsey, while we have 567 mu

nicipalities, we have here a discrepancy which I will have 

to resolve although it's not of paramount importance. 

The Police Training Commission informs me 

there are 431 organized polic8 departments. The Nrw Jersey 

State Police have on record 429. Two are missing somewhere 

but we'll resolve. But, having 567 municipalities, and 

429 or 431 organized police departments, it becomes neces

sary so that the State Police in their primary function 

patrol these other areas by themselves, and of course, 

there they are engaged in doing the very work which local 

police departments should do~ 

Of course, as the members 

of the legislature know full ''·: ll 1 the State Police also 

engage in co-operative efforts with many of these police 

departments, as you know, a great many of them h~ve very 

small departments and are in need of assistance from the 

State Police from time to time and fairly often. 

There are 96 police agencies 

in the State of New Jersey which have from one to five 

• 

.. 
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officers. There are 90 which have six to ten. There are 

138 which have eleven to twenty-five; 60 which have from 

twenty-six to fifty; 16 which have fifty-one to seventy

five; 11 which have from seventy-six to ninety-nine and 

there are 20 which have 100 or more officers. And, I 

might also indicate that there are, as of July 1, 1967, 

12,555 local permanent police officers in the State. 

There were 425 chiefs and at that time, according to 

police commission reports, there were six unfilled vacan

cies in the ranks, so that 425 and 6 comes to 431. 

MR. LUMBARD: I didn't get 

that myself. The total number of men in the State are 

12, what? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: The total 

number of local permanent police officers is 12,555. 

MR. LUMBARD: And the total 

number of police chiefs? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: 4 2 5 , 

with 6 vacancies. That was as of July, 1967. 

There are 76 deputy chiefs. 

MR. LUMBARD: Is the 425 

chiefs included in the 12,000 total police? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. 

There 8,109 patrolmen; 985 

detectives; 1595 sergeants; 881 lieutenants; 455 captains; 

29 inspectors; 76 deputy chiefs, and I gave you the chiefs, 
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425. 

MR. LUMBARD: I have some 

pretty good notes. I wonder if you could have that list 

typed up and give them to us? 

taken? 

as of July 1, 196?. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Sure. 

MR. LUMBARD: When was that 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: This is 

MR. LUMBARD: Do you think 

it's changed in any material way? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No, I 

don't think its changed materially. If anything, I think 

• 

• 

we've lost some patrolmen. • 

MR. LUMBARD: More chiefs? 

ATTYe GEN. SILLS: Yes, I 

think we have more chiefs, we need more Indians. 

Now, as for State Police, 

with respect to their activities, personnel assignments 

at the division headquarters, criminal investigation 

staff have increased from 64 men in 1964 to 92 men in 

196?. Now, some of these men, and I'm leaving out the 

number at the moment, it's not large in number and I 

wouldn't care to reveal it, are assigned to a task force 

known as the Organized Crime Task Force. This was estab-

" 
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lished in October of 196?. 

Criminal investigations have 

increased from 12,163 in 196::! to 13,362 in 1966 and to 

1?,642 in 1967. Criminal arrests have risen from 901 in 

1965 to 9?2 in 1966 and to 1,381 in 196?. During the 

same period,throughout the entire Division of State 

Police, there were 54,31? investigations conducted in 

1965 with ?,638 arrests, 62,?23 investigations conducted 

in 1966 with 9,324 arrests and 69,515 investigations con-

ducted in 196? with 9,429 arrests. 

There are two units in the 

Division Headquarters Criminal Investigation Section. The 

gambling undercover unit and the narcotics unit. These 

• units have as one of their prime functions,the obtaining 

of evidence prior to arrests by means of undercover inves-

tigations. At the conclusion of these investigations, 

raids generally are conducted. There's been a steady rise 

in the number of raids conducted and the number of defend-

ants arrested and in the·value of confiscated mone~and 

contraband drugs. 

The increased erifor.ced 
-~ .. 

activity in gambling is self worthy I believe, particularly 

in view of the number of man-hours that were devoted by 

these personnel for riot control work in 196?. And, through 

the year it shows that 1961 there were 23 gambling raids, 
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45 individuals arrested, and $42,480 confiscated. In 1952 

there were 108 gambling raids, 290 individuals arrested and 

$32,795 confiscated. In 1963 there were 185 gambling raids, 

332 individuals arrested and $59,110 confiscated. In 1954 

there were 158 gambling raids, 318 individuals arrested 

and $73,041 confiscuted. In 1955 there were 92 raids, 

300 defendants and $80,855.32 confiscated. In 1955, 

159 raids, 285 defendants and $78,758.98 confiscated. In 

1957, this past year, not withstanding, I think you know, 

something like 93,oon man-hours usad by the State Police, 

40,000 in Newark and 33,000, if I recall correctly, in 

Plainfield covering, pret-ty much, ti18 month of July and 

August, and, also, not withstanding, I don't know how 

many hourF ·.nvastigative work in .. ooking back at 

the riots 2nd determining investigative procedures as 

a result of arrests and so forth coming out of riotr, 

not withstanding that, there were s~!ll 152 raids with 

334 defendants end $145,113.~8 conf~scated. 

II-1R. LUMBARD: When you say 

the gambling activities nrc r~sing, do you mean that there 

is more law enforcement activity against gambli~g or more 

gambling, or both? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Of course, 

it is difficult to say, b8cause gambling is sc prevalent, 

that our problem, as I think you are well aware, is the 

.. 
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problem of getting the evidence, having the manpower and 

putting in the time in order to be able to get a warrant 

for the raid and for the arrests. I imagine that given more 

men and given more money and resources, this figure could 

go up and up and up, because gambling is just that preva

lent. I would say that because of the interest at the 

State level we have made determined efforts to break in, 

especially at the organized crime area, and in doing so, 

having set up as we have since 1966 our intelligence unit 

within the State Police and having moved the investigative 

unit over into the DrganL' ri Crine Task Force to some ex

tent, this has accounted for the increase under Col. Kelly 

of these raids and individuals arrested and amounts of 

money confiscated. 

MR. LUMBARD: We'll come 

back to that later. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Now, this 

investigative unit which I was talking about was merged 

into the Organized Crime Task Force in 1967, has the 

following responsibilities: 

The broad objective is to 

gather information and translate it into effective action, 

to analyzinQ, evaluations, co-ordinations and dissemina

tions. The specific objectives are to establish the ex

istence of organized crime, where it is, its strength, 
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its structure and principal income; to identify current 

and emerging 1 mders and their associates, prepare and 

msin~ain dossiers on th~m and conduct investigations in 

depth; identify ~reas or industry, legal or illegal which 

are most vulnerable to organized crime; to maintain a 

division-:uide progrc:1m to encourage the position of informa

tion and ~o dJ.;;~~ .... i.;i' ~r '.-f'fnctively j nformation to divi-

sion pe~sonnel; to maintain accurate records and files 

with cross-reference and system oP rapid retrievals; to 

co-operate uith other law enforc~~c~t agencies in oxchang-

inq i~1formetion concerning organized crime. And, of 

c~urse, to ~eep thr sup~rintcnd2nt and myself fully in-

Now, with respsct ta th~ 

objectives, LJe r1avr; cL:inp.leted dossiers an 1 -:·.ding fi;ures 

in Jrganized crime thct are either living in Uew Jsrsey 

or hcve connections in New Jersey. ~e've estsblished 2 

centrPl file systam containing information on orgenized 

crime. We've est~blishud go~rl relationships with law en

forcement agenci2s on the federal, state, county and 

munit"'ipal J.evels, tuhich facilitates excl:2nge of intelli

gence with respect to orQ3nized crime. 

This unit has been accepted 

for m~mber~hip in the Law Enfarcem~nt Intelligence Unit, 
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which I think Mr. Lumbard is familiar with. It's a nation

wide organization of carefully selected law enforcemrnt 

agencies 1 was founded in California 1 I believe 1 in ~ ... j 1 

inr ')H· C~ ·1.5. fc:rn:iB Derartment of Justice. This is the only 

::gt,;t:"/ in the .;~; :;r Yi .J: !.d Jersey which has been accepted 

within this unit . 

We've established the fact 

that there are certain groups or families identified with 

organized crime here in New Jersey,and,that members of· 

these groups are located in the New York Metropolitan area 

and come over into New Jersey. There is one family which 

is very active in the Philadelphia area,which is also 

active in Central and Southern New Jersey, and,there is 

one,which was mentioned in the President's Crime Commission 

Report and in other communications and periBdicals, who 

is very ;ou:ti'Jr i.n ::J:-t::r:rn ::·:1r.' Central ;Jcttl Jersey. 

Now, I indicated there was 

an investigative unit in the State Police. I won't give you 

the number of men who are engaged in that activity,and,as 

I've indicated, it's been merged into the Organized Crime 

We also have a security con

trol unit which was previously known as the subversive 

unit. 

MR. LUMBARD: Would you give 
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mE thosv titles 2gain? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Central 
Unit 

Securities /formerly known as subversive unit. 

MR. LUMBARD: What does secur-

ity have ta do with subversive? 
I 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Security • 

Control which concerns itself with either right ... wing 

organizatioms, left-wing organizations, militant groups. 

The undercover unit, polygraph unit, teletype unit, pri-

vate detec~ive unit, the State Police have the responsi-

bility for li~ensing private detectives in the State of 

New Jersey. Race track unit, the State Police have the 

re ... ,. , "':l:l.bili ty for patrolling the rf'ce tracks in the State of 

New Jersey and entorcing the law which does not permit 

people who have criminal records to appear at the State's 

trae,ks. 

The Auto Unit, which 1s an 

auto theft squad. 

A Hum2n Relations Unit. ruow, 

• 
in 1965 there t;'EoS one sergeant, one invBstigator ;·:ho 

spent 2,44P rnqn-hours inquiring, lectures, conferences 

conduqted and attended, attendance at minority group meet ... 

ings End serving as observers a+. demonstrations including 

investigations surveilance at Klu Klux Klen rallies. 

They covered 37,468 miles in thn p~ocess. In 1966 there 
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L:cr;,: ~:n.'c:c: invL>>Ligdtors <'mel une sergeant, u1ho spr:Jnt 

5,787 man-hours end covered 83,972 miluc with the same 

activities. In 1967, there were three investigators 

and one sergeant, who spent 7,608 man-hours and covered 

12,836 miles with tho same activities. This does not 

includo the riot cctivities during 19G7. I indic2tPd to 

were sp~nt by State Police pcrsonnol,in Addition to the 

four men assigned to the HumBn Relatione Unit ~n riot 

control duties in this arBG fnr ci vi.l di stul'Ll<.HlC Hr3 :1. n 

tlw yr:<x.r 1967. The Hum;':n RelL,tions Unit uJere observers 

Bt eight demonstrations in 1965, 25 demonstrations in 

1966, end 50 in 1967. They 8ttended 10 minority group 

meetings in 1 65, 40 meetings in '66 2nd GO meeti~gs in 

1967. 

We have a narcotics unit, 

•'Lh investigators, detectives .and lieutenants in charge, 

who conducted 3,742 investigations and made 544 arrests 

in 1965, in 43,239 hours, and confiscated drugs for a 

value of $9,749. 

MR. LUMBARD: Is this a 

separate unit from the narcotics unit that you mentioned 

previously? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No, this 

is the narcotics unit. 
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MR. LUMBARD: I~ is the 

s3me one that you were talking about before? 

~TTV. GEN. SILLS: Ves, I 

am now giving you their activities in th~ years. 

I<1 1966 ~hey ccndwcted 45 

investigations~ made 650 ~rrests dnd expended 42,697 man

hours, and, ccnf~scatsd dfugs with a value of SJ0,845. 

In 196?, they conduFted 4,968 investigations, made 1,0~8 

arrests, expen~~d 43,0~7 ~an~hours, and confiscated d~gs 

in the amount of S286,3BO. 

There were 10? raids in 1965 

in 21 citi~s; 153 raid~ in ~966 i~ 15 cities and 244 raids 

in 1967 in 21 cities. 

The State Police also have 

c: liquf;!f;i.'eO. petroleul'fl gaf;l unit. Und~r the statutes 

this is a te~hn~cal service which they must p~rform and 

da perform. I don't '.:. .i:1k this would be of much interest 

to the CammittGo here today. 

Now, in addition to what 

we have in the divisinn headquarters, we also have five 

Troops. We have f1ve Troop commands under the State 

Pal+ce, designate~ A th~augh E. Troops A, 8 and C do 

genaral work. Troop A generally works in the southern 

F:~a, Traop a generally in the northern area and Troop c 

ger·;:rqlly is in the c:mtral area of New Jersey. In 

• 
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addition, Troop D controls the turnpike, and Troop E con

trols the Garden State Parkway. 

Now, within the Troops there 

are detectives, investigators and people in charge, and 

investigations are conducted by these men, and they also, 

of course, make their particular arrests. 

Now, within the State Police, 

we also have the State Bureau of Identification. The 

State Bureau receives and collects, criminal record~ and 

statistics, from all police agencEs, and provides criminal 

information and statistics. It con ists of 18 State 

Police personnel, and 106 civilian~ersonnel. It is 

divided into the following units: 

The State Bureau ~f Identi

fication; The Uniform Crime Reporting Unit; a. riational 

C .;_ ,., I:1formation Sending Unit; Crime Records; Firearms 

Laboratories; Chemica.l L'3boratori es; Photn LRhoratori es; 

Lc:undry Marks • 

Now, the Uniform Crime 

Reporting Unit became operational on January l; 1967 • 

·f~1, .~:-~<1.:-:ture, of course, will recall that the law was 

passed in the preceeding session and six months was per

mitted to allow for the setting-up of the particular 

unit. 



30 

It processed, in 1967, 89,633 

uniform crime reporting forms, tt.Jhich were received from 

592 police agencies. The five field representatives, who 

are members of the State Police, contacted, instructed and 

assisted these agencies in 2,564 visits. In February, 

1967, it submitted the plans for monthly uniform crime 

reports for each organized police agency, including 425 

organized municipal police departments, 105 non-organized 

municipal police departments, 42 prosecutors and sheriffs' 

offices, 11 state agencies and 9 county police organiza

tions. And, that was in the State of New Jersey. 

We assisted in furnishing 

this information, of course, to the F.B.I. Jerome Daunt, 

the F.B.I. director of the Uniform Crime Reporting System, 

has highly recommended the New Jersey system as a model. 

I think I ought to get that plug in. 

We estimate that by 1970, it 

will be processing 231,366 monthly reports, on an annual 

basis. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, now 

that you've had that unit in operation for the full 1967 

calendar year, when is the public going to learn the 

results of what it accumulated? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Well, we 

have a statistical manual which will be entitled "Crime 

" 
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in New Jersey" and the first publication is due in August, 

1968. And, if you will help us get the system computerized, 

we will be able to get it in about one month at the earliest, 

two months latest, after the end of a given year. 

MR. LUMBARD: In other. words, 

for the calendar year 1967 you still have no figures to 

release? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: We could 

give you figures, but you are asking me as to when the 

public when the statistics will be available for the 

public in total form, and we will not be able to have that 

until about August of 1968. Because, you know, the F.B.I. 

itself doesn't come out with their annual report until 

about six months after the year is over • 

MR. LUMBARD: But, General, 

the annual report for the past calendar year they have 

already released the gross figures. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: We can 

give you statistics on a quarterly basis, we can give you 

statistics on a monthly basis, but drawing an evaluation 

frnm these st2tistics takes a little bit of time too. 

MR. LUMBARD: Have you re

leased yet the 1967 total gross figures, whether or not 

analyzed in full detail? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: In given 
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instances, one asks for given things, not complete, no. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, for example, 

the F.B.I. did put out from the Uniform Crime Reports several 

weeks ago the total national figures for 1967. Couldn't 

you at least do that for New Jersey? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I think we 

could do lots, and are doing lots, as a matter of fact, 

but, you must recall, that this is our first year. The 

F.B.I. has been in existence for many years --

MR. LUMBARD: I'm not trying 

to be critical in that sense, I'm trying to say that the 

total gross figures are easy to add up, all you do is add 

up the four quarterly reports, and that could be released. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: But in 

releasing that we would be giving figures which in a sense 

are in a vacuum, because we have nothing to compare them 

against insofar as the State of New Jersey is concerned. 

MR. LUMBARD: That may be 

the main point, because the State of New Jersey has not 

had Bny kind of crime reporting up to date, and the public 

is really relatively uninformed as to what the nature and 

degree of crime is in this state. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Except 

for the F.B.I. reports, which you see reports in something 

like 280, I believe it was, or something thereabouts, 
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police agencies in the State of New Jersey. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, I think 

you and I could agree what's been going on by way of crime 

reporting here has not been able to draw a portrait to the 

public. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Right, 

but I think we must be careful, we give the information 

to people who have a reason to want the information, who 

have the need for the information quickly, but we have a 

feeling at the moment, right or wrong, that just to come 

out with statistics as statistics, might not be of the 

great value which you believe, unless and until we are 

able to put it into the proper prospective. For example, 

one thing which I know and which is being evaluated, 

although, for example, the crime statistics in New Jersey 

have gone up as per F.B.I. reports, as they have through

out the country, still the rise in New Jersey has been 

much less than what it is throughout the country. 

MR. LUMBARD: But, General, 

without a base-line, without any prior years to compare 

against, how can you make that comparison? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: On the 

basis of F.B.I. reports. 

MR. LUMBARD: But you just 

said they are half incomplete. 
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ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Vou said 

they are half incomplete, I'd say they are half complete. 

MR. LUMBARD: Either way, we 

don't get much comfort from comparing whatever figures you 

are going to release fn1 crime in 1967 in New Jersey with 

the past years of the F.B.I. reports. 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: I once 

made a similar statement to that effect to a national 

conference of attorney generals, where Lynn Edwards, an 

inspector in liaison with the Department of Justice of 
was 

the F.B.I. to the attorney generals/present, and within 

one week after returning to my office I received a letter 

from the Honorable J. Edgar Hoover telling me how wrong 

I was. 

MR. LUMBARD: I'm not trying 

to tilt windmills with Mr. Hoover here today at all, I'm 

merely trying to make the point that you have the total 

figures on crime in New Jersey for the years reported in 

1967 for the first time in state's history, and I'm 

merely trying to say to you, perhaps, as a sense of ur-

gency, to release this figure to the public, perhaps 

even in gross form, and then take more time to analyze 

them, but at the present time the public doesn't have a 

clue. 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: I believe 

• 



35 

the public has a clue from what's going on. I don't be

lieve that the F.B.I. statistics are so inaccurate that 

they are unable to ascertain that we do have a great crime 

problem in the country today. As I indicated before, I 

accept your comments as they are given. It is my feeling 

at the moment that we must be careful in putting out gross 

figures, especially when they cannot be compared to any

thing else in the State of ~J:Jw Jersey for prior years 

except the F.B.I. reports, which, as we both indicate, 

have 280 some reporting units as against the 500 and some 

which we will have. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, what 

is the purpose in putting out any crime statistics to the 

public? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: In order 

to evaluate them, to let the public know whether it is 

a large, small or medium problem and what must be done 

in the particular areas. 

MR. LUMBARD: And don't all 

those reasons apply to the release of the statistics 

now for 1967? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Not nee-

essarily in my opinion. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, let me 

give you one right away. In many communities people are 
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going to have to make budget decisions about police de

partments, about what resources in their community should 

be allotted to the criminal justice system, there is 

nothing more important to the Freeholders or the other 

government officials in this state who are trying to make 

these judgements, than the crime figures, because that's 

really the work product, the reason for the whole system 

existing. And if they don't receive this information, 

or if they're not in a position to have released at the 

earliest possible time what crime is in their community 

as compared to crime in a comparable community the same 

size, or whatever, in which they can make the judgement, 

then a very important government purpose is being defeated. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Each 

police department in the State of New Jersey has its own 

figures on the form which they submitted to us, and they 

can show those figures to their mayor and council of 

their municipality. In addition to that, the colonel 

meets quite regularly with the Police Chief's Association, 

has conversations with them and indicates to them what 

these figures are showing. In addition to that the 

police chiefs in these various communi ties are well &!'ware 

of what their problems are and what their manpower needs 

are. Our problem is on the state level where we deal, 

and on the state level all of this information, I can 

.. 
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assure you, it will be made available to the Legislative 

Appropriations Committee when we come in and say why we 

need 220 men instead of 60. 

MR. ~UMBARD: That's not my 

point. I'm sure the police chief knows what crime is in 

his community. I'm sure that the Legislative or inside 

officials can find out, but those are vastly different 

purposes than notifying the public of what's going on in 

their communities. 

Let me give you an illustra

tion. Last fall I was in Essex County and went to a number 

of police departments. Of the 21 police departments in 

Essex County, not one had a report that it released to 

its community of the crime figures in its community, not 

one. I've never been anywhere where the whole system was 

as obscure as it is here, and everywhere there seems to 

be this resistance on the part of the people involved in 

the system, including the police chiefs, to release the 

figures to the public pRriod, and I can't understand why, 

except possibly embarrassment, as to how many cars are 

stolen in the community or how many burglaries occurred. 

So, why couldn't the groou figures be put out instantly? 

Are you getting a lot of heat from the local community 

not to put them out? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Oh, no, 
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this is just a matter of manpower and hours on our part 

in putting all these things together. But what we would 

like to do in our first manual is to have an analysis of 

this as well as putting out just the figures. We'd like 

to be able to show what these figures mean really than 

just to say that there were 300 homicides in New Jersey 

last year period. 

MR. LUMBARD: You could do 

what the Uniform Crime Reporting system does, what most 

states do, they try to get out quickly the gross figures 

and then go on to analyze it more efficiently. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I suggest 

that thP.y have a pretty pat way of analyzing, and that 

the figures fit almost into the analysis even in the 

quarterly reports that they put out. So you give us the 

experience which they have had, and you'll get it just 

as quickly, and as far as we are concerned, we want to 

get them out quickly. I haven't seen these figures 

yet, and it is important for me to see them. 

MR. LUMBARD: You haven't 

seen them yet? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No, I 

haven't seen them. 

MR. LUMBARD: Have you made 

your budget appropriation request to the Legislature? 

• 
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ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Surely, 

they were made up in August and September of 1967 before 

the first year of the Uniform Crime Reporting System was 

completed. 

MR. LUMBARD: Shouldn't they 

be readjusted on the basis of what the current crime problem 

is? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Sure they 

should, but if you speak to the Legislaturs you will find 

out it is not going to make much difference. We have a 

problem with revenue in the State of New JersEy period, 

and I can assure you that all this will show is that we 

need more money, not less. We have already been given 

less than what we asked for based upon the experience 

that we have had without the Uniform Crime Reporting 

statistics. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, General, 

I can only say two things, since you're starting out I'd 

suggest to you the system and approach that Mr. Beatty 

uses in the State of California. It is by far the best 

state system. 

Secondly, I cannot under

stand why the gross figures cannot be made immediately 

available, especially to you and the Governor. 

Well, you are in the middle 
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of your statemente 

ATTV~ GEN. SILLS~ We have a 

unit,which became operational on February 1, 1968, which 

supplies computerized police information,on a twenty-four 

hour basis, to over 580 state, county and municipal police 

agencies in New Jersey* Since its inception only seven 

weeks ego, it has supplied information on inquiries from 

these police agencies which resulted in the recovery and 

apprehension of 225 stolen cars, ~uns and articles. This, 

of course~ was tied in with the N.C.I.C. in Washington. 

We have a criminal information 

and fingerprint section~ This section is responsiLle for 

processing and updating of all fingerprint records. In 

1965 it received and processed 135,000 fingerprints. In 

1 67 it received and processed 178,000 fingerprints. It 

is estimated that it will receive and process approximately 

260,000 finn8rprints annually by 1970, Its records con

tain 3Yz million prints which are collated in an index 

card system containing 1~ million name cards. 

MR~ LUMBARD~ General, on 

that point, you say it is 3Yz million prints0 How much 

overlap. how much repetition is that? In other words, 

how many different individuals are represented by the 

~h million sets of prints? Because it is occurs to me 

that the total state population of New Jersey when com-
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pared with 3~ million prints indicates something may be 

amiss. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: That would 

be approximately 750,000. 

MR. LUMBARD: 750,000 dif-

ferent subjects? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: Just so the 

record is clear, these would be prints that came in at 

subsequent stages of the processing of those persons' 

cases, and they're overlapped? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Right. 

MR. LUMBARD: Do you have a 

program to cleanse those files? 

hear about that later. 

could give you that. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: I'd like to 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: The Colonel 

MR. LUMBARD: I wish you 

would, Colonel, because clearly, if you are trying to 

find one thing out of a file of 750,000, it is vastly 

different than trying to find one thing out of 3,500,000, 

and a great amount of inefficiency is involved here. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: This unit 
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processes inquiries of law enforcement agencies,bcth by 

the submission of names and other pertinent information 

as well as by the submission of fingerprints. 

Requests for criminal lockup, 

for Grand Juries, state agencies, state commissions and 

state employment police agencies, have increased to 

approximately 310,000 per year and is projected by 1970 

this section will receive and process over 500,000 requests 

to determine whether persons have criminal records. 

We have a Firearms Laboratory. 

In 1965 there were 739 cases received for ballistic checks, 

in 1966, 904; 1967, 947. During these years personnel, 

who have conducted the ballistic examinations, were re

quested to spend 34 days in court to testify in 1 65, 41 

days in '66, and 58 days in 1967. 

We have a scientific crime 

detection laboratory. In 1965 they processed 1,886 cases. 

MR. LUMBARD: This again is 

the same one that you mentioned before? Now you are 

going from the general to the specific? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. 

You asked for resources and workload, as I recall, and 

it's indicating thato 

In 1966 it processed 2,122 

cases, 1967, 2,417 cases$ We have six chemists in the 
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laboratory. 

The average subpoena rate to 

appear in court is about 150 per month. It is estimated 

that by 1970 it will be necessary to institute laboratory 

exnminRtions at the rate of 5500 per year. 

During '67, there were 413 

toxicology cases received for analysis in the laboratory. 

Thirty-three days were spent by personnel in court to 

testify in connection with the examinations. Chemical 

analysis are performed by this unit on a practically 

unlimitted arrangement of materials, including body 

tissues, narcotics, clothes and many other objects which 

are capable of chBmical, tnxicol6ricPl, nercntic identi-

fication, microscopic analysis or physical examination. 

We have a photo laboratory. 

This unit takes and provides photographs for criminal 

identification. It takes moving pictures. f acts of in

dividuals for use in court as well as fo~ the study of 

police problems, not too many. In 1965 it rendered 

26,173 units in service in the nature of film negatives, 

photo prints, photo enlargements, evidence photographs 

and technical services. The services increased to 31,112 

in 1 66, and 35,429 in '67. 

We have a document examina

tion section, in 1 65 they examined 2447 documents and 
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176 cases~ In 1966 they examined 3,225 documents and 155 

cases. In 1 67 they examined 6,698 documents and 185 cases. 

While the work in this unit includes mainly handwriting 

analysis and document identification, it is presently study

ing the relatively new field of voice print identification 

with respect to its reliability. 

We have a firearms investiga

tion unit,and the primary work of this unit is to coordin

ate control and record all firearms purchases and sales 

within the state,and to investigate retail and wholesale 

dealers and manufacturers of firearms. During the three

year period 1965-1967, 187,117 applications were received 

to process of which 2,151 were applications for retail 

or wholesale dealers and manufacturers. And on the three

year period 1965, there were 34,283 applications, 1966, 

59,153, 1967, 93,681. During 1967, 30,438 of the applica

tions were approved for firearms identification cards, 

15,418 were approved for pistol purchase applications, 

518 of fj~aarms purchase ~.D. cards were rejected, 338 

pistol purchase permits were rejected. 

We have a laundry-jewelry 

mark unit. This unit maintains an index card system of 

items comprised of cases submitted to it for identification, 

as well as information supplied on a voluntary basis. 

In 1965 they had 170 cases, in 1966,161, in 1967,164. 

• 
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The index cards on file today are 266,324. This 

includes 30,000 jeweler marks, representing jewelers from 

26 states east of the Mississippi. The records of identi

fication in these files are used by all law enforcement 

agencies in the United States. 

And, of course, we have the 

activities which I related to the criminal investigation 

section. 

We have the traffic unit. As 

I indicated to you before, they're· daily charged with en

forcing the traffic laws. The normal function of the 

State Police personnel,located in the various headquarters 

throughout the State,is to conduct police patrols,where 

much of the attention is directed towards traffic viola

tions. This is particularly so in rural areas where 

there are no organized police forces. 

Now, in addition, in 1965, 

through legislation, the Highway Patrol Bureau was es

tablished to supplement existing police patrols where 

hazards exist. The bureau is composed of three opera

tional units which function in the areas of Troops ~' 

8 and C, and one administrative unit which operates from 

headquarters. The operational units consist of mobile 

teams as well as radar teams and weighing teams. They 

work in groups of four and five vehicles on a designated 
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portion of a highway and concentrate on strict enforce

ment of all moving accident causing violations. The task 

force patrols consist of 24 troopers in each of the three 

road groups and 12 troopers on the turnpike. In 1965 

they issued 33,765 summons, '66, 47,510, '67, 40,895. 

We have a fatal accident unit, 

whose purpose is to reinvestigate all motor vehicle fatal

ities in the State. The reports are forwarded to the 

various state agencies and county prosecutor offices. On 

the basis of these investigations, fatal accident hearings 

are recommended to the driver improvement section of the 

Motor Vehicle Division. In 1965 they conducted 2, 316 in

vestigations in 994 fatal accidents, which involved 1,095 

fatalities,and they recommended 398 hearings. In 1966 

they conducted 2,510 investigations in 1.015 fatal acci

dents, which involved 1127 fatalities, and they recommended 

339 hearings. In 1967 they conducted 2,570 investigations 

and in 1,040 fatal accidents, which involved 1168 fatali

ties, they recommended 338 hearings. 

And, of course, there's the 

truck weighing program, and this is for the enforcement 

of the overweight laws on the highways. I don't think 

you're too much interested in that. 

We have a chemical breath 

testing program. In 1966, with the establishment of the 

I 

• 
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Imulied Consent law by legislation, it's my responsibil

ity to approve breath methods to be used and to certify 

operators for the drunkometer and the breatholizer. 

The superintendent of the State Police by directive has 

established methods to be used by certified operators. 

In 1965 one hundr~d new municipal and state operators 

were trained, 13~ instruments were inspected monthly. 

In 1966, 266 municipal and state operators were trained 

and 995 operators attended refresher courses and were 

certified. In 1967, 562 new municipal and state operators 

were trained, 986 operators were certified by mP. and 

1859 operators attended refresher courses, and 235 in

struments were inspected. In addition, the State Police 

certified operators issued 535 summons in '65, 821 in 

1 66 and 1210 in 1967. 

Then, of course, the same 

unit has a radar program, and this is for traffic patrol, 

as you know. Now, there have been some decreases in 

activity in this area in 1967, which we attribute to the 

fact, as I indicated to you before, that many of the men 

in these teams were assigned to the control of the riots 

during the Summer of 1967. 

Now, there are many activities 

in the State Police which I have not discussed. I 

haven't discussed, for example, what we've done, that is 
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in detail, in data processings The microfilm system. 

The administration and processing of a tremendous volume of 

internal records and reports, pre-service and in-service train-

ing, that is within the State Police, and other admin-

istrative functions. 

We also have a Bureau of 

Safety Education, where instructions are furnished to 

schools, adult programs, ~s well as other law enforcement 

agencies. 

Another thing we did, of 

courPe, in 1967,was to set up,through executive order,the 

school known as "Operation Combine for Civil Disorders". 

This was formed, as you know, in th8 Fall of 1967 follow

ing the summer riotse WF; 1 ve conducted courses at Srmgi:rt 

and we've had 510 supPrvi2orv members of the State Police, 

national guard and municipal police departments trained 

in riot control and prevention in eight classes~ 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Mr$ Attorney 

General, I think we should give our reporter a break, and 

I think we've scheduled a fifteen minute break at this 

time. So, we will recess for fifteen minutes. 

(At which time a fifteen 

minute recess was taken.) 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Gentlemen, 

I think we should try and keep on our schedule, so I will 
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call this hearing back to order and the members will take 

their seats. 

We will proceed, Mr. Attorney 

General. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Thank 

you. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, could 

I express the views of several of the committee members 

who spoke to me during the recess? They inquired if I 

might, perhaps, do some night-time reading of some of 

the statistical material you have, and, if you could, 

perhaps, in swift strokes summarize some of the essentials 

that you have, and then we could get on to questions. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I cer-

tainly want to co-operate, but I was asked to come here 

and give some basic material at a public hearing so that 

the public will know it as well, and my giving it to you 

will not let the public know about it, and it seems to 

me it would be of some interest to the public to know 

the amount of work that is being expended by the State 

law enforcement agencies for the detection of criminal 

activities in the State and what goes into the makeup. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, I do 

think it is quite clear that those things are important. 

I would also say that it is a thousand times more impor-
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tant if they know how many felonies have been committed 

in the state and how many hours have been expended on the 

drunkometer tests. 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: We get 

58% of our drivers involved in fatal accidents, homicides. 

MR. LUMBARD: How many homi-

cides were there in New Jersey last year? 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Off hand: 

I can't tell you, but the ratio here is about 3 per 

lOO,OOO, so it would be approximately a little over 200 

in the State of New Jersey. 

MR. LUMBARD: And would you 

have a breakdown into what categories they fall into? 

and so forth? 

give them to the committee? 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Oh, yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: Vehicular 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Oh, yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: Could you 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: I don't 

have them with me now, no •. But we can get those. 

MR. LUMBARD: We would like 

that kind of information. 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: I will 

get it for you. 
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The State Police, of course, 

you went to know their resources, they have various equip-

ment, of course, they have the buildings from which they 

operate, they have transportation equipment, they have 

sidearms, and,I'm doing this rapidly now, a certain 

amount C!f teletype equipment, radar equipment, 

drunkometer equipment, breatholizer equipment, and we have 

scientific crime detection equipment, not enough but some, 

and,I won't go through these with you but I do have avail-

able the various kinds of equipment which we do have. 

And, of course, very recently we rented equipment so that we 

could tie with N.C.I.C., and I think it's important to 

know that we have a control unit of printers keyboard, 

a tape reader, a tape punch, a card reader, a printed card 

punch, and an ASR teletype, all making up the equipment 

necessary for re,ceipt of information from theN .C.I.C., 

about which I spoke before. 

Now, getting away from the 

State Police but still stay; n· 1 ,;_~:;in '-he area of criminal 

law and criminal law enforcer:: n· .. , I imt~r:~ ted to you before, 

that the Division of Law and Public Safety had a criminal 

investigation section. I think I neglected to tell you 

that it's under the immediate supervisi8n of an Assist2nt 

Attorney Genrornl, and, in the Stc::>t e of New JcrsF'V, , , 

Assistant Attorney General is a higher dr:.si~Jil:: .,:_l..lil than a 
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deputy attorney general, and this assistant attorney gen-

eral is designated as the director of criminal investiga-

tions, who has three deputy attorney generals working with 

him and they are members of the State Bar of New Jersey. 

I indicated to you before that working with him are the 

group of investigators. Now, this section advises and 

assists with out-of-state agencies, prosecutors and police 

departments in the form of letters, formal opinions, con-

sultations, and, of course, investigations. The deputy 

attorney general sometimes substitutes for prosecutors, 

as I indicated before, where the law permits and· where re-

quested. 

The criminal investigation 

staff generally participates in the following kinds of 

matters: 

This was established many 

years ago, I think in the time of Attorney General Parsons, 

I believe, -- Van Riper -- that was before General Parsons. 

Investigations pertaining to 

alleged criminal activities within state agencies, institu-

tions and departments, investigations in co-operation with 

the Division of Law,involving escheats and voided corpor-

ations,which result in financial benefits to the State. 

Investigations requested by 

county and municipal authorities within the State. 



53 

Matters where criminal activi

ties are alleged but it is not clear initially whether 

criminal conduct is actually involved. General investi

gations,in support of the legal work,for the Division of 

Law and investigations of matters coming to the attention 

of the attorney general,which generally do not fall into 

the hard criminal investigations operations of the State 

Police. 

I gather, you don't want me 

to give you the statistics for the criminal investigation 

section as the cases received and docketed? 

MR. LUMBARD: I would like 

that in brief text. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: In 1965, 

they received and docketed 442 cases; 253 were referred 

to county prosecutors for theiT further handling; 50 

were assigned to deputy attorney generals; 94 were handled 

directly by our own investigators; 23 were referred to 

the State Police; 22 were assigned to other departments 

for their handling. In 1 66, 510 cases received and 

docketed; 285 were ref~~red to county prosecutors; 56 

assigned to deputies; 100 directed by our own investiga

tors; 47 were referred to State Police and 22 referred 

to other departments. In '67, 697 cases were received; 

352 referred to county prosecutors; 123 assigned to 
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deputies; 151 handled directly by our own investigators; 

49 referred to the State Police and again 22 referred to 

other departments. Now, this section also conducts 

monthly meetings of all prosecutors in the county, which 

I generally chair. At which time, there's an exchange of 

information on criminal law and enforcement problems. 

There is also a presentation at each meeting under the 

topic of immediate or current concern to all prosecutors 

for which problems and view points of the prosecutors are 

presented in open discussion. There is sometimes eminating 

from these discussions the reports about which 

I spoke before. I have further instances of kinds of 

reports but I think I've illustrated before sufficiently. 

Now, in 1968, we've already 

received ?5 cases for investigation and 31 investigations 

center in eight different counties. 

Some of the more noteworthy 

kinds of cases which were disposed-of during 196?, to 

give an example of what they handled, were cheating in 

Civil Service examinations, stolen Traveler's checks, 

racial bias, stolen Esso credit cards, theft of government 

funds, a killing by police, breakdown of law enforcement 

in this particular area, vice in this particular area, 

discrimination in poverty programs, court discriminations 

against Negroes, fraudulent repossession of a home, padded 
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purchases by utility authorities, baby selling, wire tapping, 

stocks frauds, leftist organizations, atrocities against 

certain Negroes, inflammatory handbills and fraud by de

veloping. Now, these are allegations, of course. This is 

the subject for investigation. Collusion in public bidding, 

the conflict of interest with respect to state employees, the 

mishandling of borough funds, police brutality, again cheat

ing on Civil Service exams, police ticket section, pilferage 

at a state college, an incinerator contract without public 

bidding, investments fraud, irregularities in county ad

ministration, bail bond irregularities and securities frauc. 

These are the kind of things which were handled directly 

by the C.I.S., within the office of the Attorney General 

and the Division of Law. 

These deputies also participate as lectur

ers and panel members in training programs with the State 

Police. The deputies also handle criminal appeals for the 

State, as well as applications for post-conviction release, 

presenting matters that have been investigated by the depart

ment for the Grand Jury or trials. Of course, we get into 

that either on the request by a prosecutor or, as I indicated 

before, in accordance with the law or by an Assignment Judge 

and so on. 

We compare rules and regulations, 

as well as legislation if required for a particu-
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lar department or commission, municipal court appearances, 

traffic tickets and so forth, drunk driving hearings, 

Civil Service appeals and disciplinary hearings before a 

bureau or commission to which they may be assigned. Now, 

these investigators also review the monthly, quarterly 

and annual report which are received from the various 

prosecutors. All of the personnel in this particular 

division assisted in the work during the Newark and the 

Plainfield riots. 

Now, in the Bureau of Securities 

we have the bureau chief and three investigators. And 

they are als~he positions of senior accountant and 

special investigator. At the moment these tw8 positions 

are vacant. The Bureau of Securities administers the 

uniform security laws and the Uniform Real Estate Syndi

cation Act. All persons who deal publicly with securities 

in New Jersey must be reg:~stered with the Bureau. It 

maintains a vigilance on the operations of persons cileal

ing with securities in New Jersey; it investigates com

plaints of dealers or unauthorized personnel in alleged 

fraudulent transactions. There's an average of 10,000 

applications for registration procedures each year, 1/3 

of which are generally initial applications, the balance 

are generally renewals® 

The Uniform Securities Act 
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was adopted in '61 ;,r, replace the nld Frauc' Injun~:>~ "n fecur

ities Law, which was in operation before that. In 1965 

the Uniform Real Estate Syndicate Law, based somewhat on 

a New York law, wasadopted, which extended the authority of 

the Bureau from persons dealing with securities transac

tions to transactions involving the syndication of real 

estate. In 196? the law wns rEvised to include the regis

tration of securities themselves in addition to the regis

tration of persons which we also have. So, at the present 

time the Bureau supervises and processes registration 

statements in connection with real estate securities and 

intra-state securities offerred. They conduct examinations 

of applicants. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, I 

think we could swift-stroke this nne us an illustration. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Well, 

during 196?, for example, they referred four major viola

tions of the Security Act to the prosecutor's office 

after the Bureau had conducted an investigation and pre

pared the case for presentation to the Grand Jury; which 

then brings you into the criminal law area, which is 

what I wanted to indicate,and in three of those cases 

convictions resulted. As a matter-of-fact, within the 

last month, a matter was presented to the Passaic County 

Grand Jury through our office, resulting in an indict-
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ment. 

MR. LUMBARD: Have you about 

finished your direct statement that you wish to give to 

the Committee? 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Not when 

we are talking about the Department of Law and Public 

Safety. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, what are 

the principal areas that you wish to tell us about that 

haven't been covered so far this morning? 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: Well, I 

think that it's important to mention the Office of Con

sumer Protection. I think it is important to mention the 

Police Training Commission. 

MR. LUMBARD: Let's go to 

the Police Training Commission. 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: All right. 

Vou don't want to hear about Consumer Protection? 

MR. LUMBARD: I'm not say

ing I don't want to hear about anything. 

ATTV. lEN. SILLS: I mean 

for this moment? 

MR. LUMBARD: I'm talking 

about the purpose of testimony. 

ATTV. GEN. SILLS: In July 
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of '67 there were 642 cases of consumer fraud aa against 

1134 in January of '68. I should tell you that -- I think 

is very important -- that a Division of State Medical 

Examiners was established in January of this year, and 

we're just getting started on that now. We've abolished 

the coroner system in New Jersey, and there are no sta-

tistics available at the present time because we're still 

underway. We have a director, B Doctor Albano, who is 

a county medical examiner and pathologist in charge. And 

the office is covered on a 24 hour basis to receive infor-

mation and answer inquiries from the county medical exam-

iners and their staff. And I'm sure you will appreciate 

how important this is in the overall theme of criminal 

law enforcement. 

Getting on to the Police 

Training Commission -- the Police Training Commission is 

a nine member non-salary body. It was established under 

discretionary law in 1961. In 1965, the Police Training 

Act was amended to train every county and municipal law 

enforcement officer appointed in this State after July 1, 

1965. Early in 1962 a survey was made in the State of 

New Jersey at which -- excuse me a moment. The survey 
it 

was made in 1962, and, I don't have/in front of me, but 

showed that of 
roughly it/ 12,500 permanent officers in New Jersey, 

about 1/3 had received no training whatsoever. And, of 
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the balance, their training went from something of inade-

quate to something less than adequate, very frankly. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, is what 

you are about to say summarized in the Police Training 

Commission section of your last annual report in 1966 

report? There is a table in there with the workload and 

a summary of the 1961 statute and 1965 statute and so 

forth. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No, what 

I'm going to give you now is a little more up to date. 

Of course, in our report you will get the function of these 

training commissions, and if you want to read it there 

and my not indicate to you that portion of it, you will 

find it in there, yes. I'm not sure whether you will find 

in there th~t we have a mobile training unit which was 

financed by federal funds which consisted of four police 

instructors, a driver and a stenographer, and we got 

something like a hundred fifty some thousand dollars for 

a two-year grant from OLEA. This unit has been traveling. 

throughout the State giving mostly supervisory training 

to officers mostly in rural areas. I believe it's the 
i 

•i 
only project of its kind, at least that I know about, in ' 

the United States. I wanted to point out that to date, 

5,220 law enforcement officers have attended commission 

approved schools and there are fourteen approved schools. 
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And the projected enrollment for '67- 1 68 was 1125 officers. 

We have over 300 certified instructors who service the 

schools, and, these instructors are recommended by the 

federal, state, county, municipal agencies and private 

sources. At the present time~ we have an average of 300 

hours of instruction in these schools. You'll probably 

recall that the President's report recommended 400. We 

have, as a mandatory requirement, 240 hours; 197 hours 

are prescribed and the balance are optional subjects. 

Not many of the schools are down to the 240 level, most 

of them are over 300. 

Now, in 1967, you won't find 

this in reports, there were 2B approved training courses 

conducted throughout the state. One thousand forty-five 

law enforcement officers representing 219 agencies 

attended. Of this number, 14 law enforcement officers 

failed the program. 

I've gone through this as 

quickly as I can, with the Police Training Commission, 

eliminating many things which I could talk about with 

you, but, for the sake of getting down to your ques-

tions. 

Remember this too, there 

is the Motor Vehicle Division and within the Motor 

Vehicle Division we have a, what was generally called 
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an inspector force, which is now called the Motor Vehicle 

Officer Force, comprising the budget positions of 175, 

and we have 151 of the jobs filled now. These men do have 

general police powers, but, to prevent ~verlappinr, 
has taken them 

assignment to them/out of the general police area. 

But, they do work on driver's tests, driver licen~ing, 

automobile dealer investigations which sometimes dovetails 

with work done by the State Police, they supervise commer-

cial driver's schools, automobile race tracks, junk yards, 

they investigate fraudulent certificates of ownership 

and counterfeit drivers licenses. They supervise and 

investigate motor vehicle agencies. We have a system of 

motor vehicle agencies in the State of New Jersey,which 

operate in conjunction with the central agency here,in 

the granting of license plates and drivers licenses or 

renewal thereof. 

MR. LUMBARD: General, have 

you now finished the review of all of the major divisions 

of your office? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Except 

for the Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, we are 

going to have the director appear here. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Let me 

say this, we have a new director --
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MR. LUMBARD: Well, he can 

bring with him his assistant or somebody that can provide 

this information, and they can prepare jointly. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Well, 

I'll abide by what you tell me to do, but I think it is 

very important in the overall picture to know what they 

do is tied in with what my other divisions do. They have 

their own undercover squad and the information they gather 

is forwarded to me and then forwarded to the State Police, 

and this ~overs gambling in taverns and other parts of 

vice, and constitutes part of the overall law enforcement 

picture. 

MR. LUMBARD: Well, we are 

aware of that. 

Now, if you were to say who 

was in charge of society'scrime control efforts in New 

Jersey, who would you say that person is? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Well, I 

don't think that that is a question which can be answered. 

EXAMINATION 
BY MR. LUMBARD: 

Q Well, let's put it this way, who is in charge of law en-

forcement in New Jersey? 

A There is no one person in charge of law enforcement in 

New Jersey. 
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Do you think there should be? 

I would have to know what you mean by that and just what 

the extent of that jurisdiction might be. I would say 

that I myself would be opposed to any one man having 

authority over every law enforcement agency in the State 

of New JersBJ. 

Q It depends, again, as you say, on what authority is. 

There is a difference in having a direct line administra

tive authority and perhaps an involvement, a questioning, 

a concern with standards and an inspection power. 

A That could carry itself right up to the federal government. 

Vou could ask the same question of a man at the federal 

level and say to him, "Do you think one man should be in 

charge of all criminal law enforcement in the United States 

of America?" 

Q And I'm sure everyone in this room would say no. 

A I would. 

Q I will come back. 

We now hava a functional 

system in New Jersey of police, prosecutors, criminal 

courts, probation, institutions and parole. Six different 

kinds of services that are concerned with the whole system 

of administering criminal justice, is that correct? 

A That is true. 

Q How would you summarize your relationship with each of 

,. 
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these? First of all, the police? 

A I only have a co-ordinating activity with respect to local 

police departments which come~about through the bit of 

supervision which I have over county prosecutors who in 

turn have a bit of supervision over the local chief of 

police. 

Q And I gather from what you say. you are in direct charge, 

in effect, with prosecutors? 

A I am not in direct charge. Prosecutors are appointed by 

the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. 
anything 

Q Do you have ;to do with those appointments as a practical 

fact? 

A I am at times asked by the Governor what I know about a 

certain person who he has in mind for an appointment as 

a prosecutor. 

Q And they meet with you monthly? 

A They meet with us monthly. 

Q They receive instructions from you? 

A I don't know whether you could call them instructions or 

not, we talk things over and generally we come to an agree-

ment on things, not all the time. 

Q Who has power to remove the prosecutors? 

A Not I. 

Q Who? 

A Well, the courts would have the power in the event of an 
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abuse of the office. 

Q Are they appointed at will by the Governor? 

A No, they are appointed for a term of office, five years. 

Q Do you think it would be advisable that they be appointed 

at will? 

A I don't know, I've never evaluated that situation. I 

wouldn't like to make an offhand opinion. I could see 

both sides of the situation like that. 

Q Could you voice to the committee your opinion after you've 

had several days to think about it? 

A Yes, but I could assure you it is not going to be an 

off-the-hip evaluation and I am not going to be able to 

do it in a day or two. 

'Q Of all the people in the State of New Jersey who work with 

prosecutors, who are not a prosecutor, you are the most 

informed, and your judgement would be most significant. 

A I can appreciate that, but at the same time I would think 

you would want an informed opinion, not an off-the-cuff 

opinion from an individual. As I understand it, the 

Constitutional Convention in New York took several months 

to determine whether or not the attorney general should 

be elected or appointed. So, in that body, if they took 

that period of time, certainly you couldn't expect me 

to give you an answer in respect to this in a day or two. 

I am just speaking my experience, because it just so 
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happened that I testified before the Committee. And I 

took at least two months in surveying that situation. 

Q Do you think the prosecutor, perhaps, should be elected? 

A No, I don't. 

Q Why not? 

A Because I don't think that those entrusted with law enforce

ment should have to go to the people in order to obtain 

their office. 

Q That includes anybody in law enforcement? 

A Ves. 

Q Are sheriffs elected in New Jersey? 

A Ves, they are. 

Q Are you against the sheriff system in New Jersey? 

A I'm against the election of sheriffs. 

Q How would you have it handled? 

A I personally believe that the time has come where the 

functions of the sheriffs should be re-evaluated, but this 

would mean an amendment to the constitution. 

Q How would you describe your relationship with the courts? 

How do you maintain liaison as to workloads and what's 

going on so that those aspects of the system, the prose

cutors, the courts, the institutions thereafter are meshed 

together and work together? 

A I'm not sure that I understand the import of your question. 

Q Well, let's put it this way; on occasion, as in the riots 
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last summer when an abnormal workload came upon the system, 

all parts of the system had to work together in an unusual 

way. They might have to do this in a regular way, but 

there had to be some activity that co-ordinated the efforts 

of the various elements in the system. 

A Well, we sit down with the administrator of the courts. 

Q That's what I'm getting at. So, you do do this? 

A Of course. 

Q Well, would you tell the Committee what you do with the 

administrator of the courts in that regard? 

A Just that. We go to the administrator and speak with him 

about the workload of prosecutors or unusual situations 

and try to work out in thatmstance what should be done. 

Q All right. Now, how does your office work with what 

follows thereafter in correctional process, probation, 

the institutions or parole? 

A I have nothing to do with probation or parole. 

Q How about the institutions? 

A Only to the extent that we provide council to the depart

ments of institutions and agencies, and we handle those 

matters which come up on post-conviction remedies, some 

Habeas Corpus matters. 

Q Could you supply subsequently by letter to the Committee 

the statistics on post-conviction remedies, which I 

don't think you gave us, and the activity? 
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A The greatest amount of that, you see, is handled by the 

prosecutors, not by my office. 

Q Whatever your office hss had to do with that I think we 

would like the figures. 

Now, from your experience 

and your involvement, would you tell the committee what 

you think are the principal crime problems confronting 

the citizens of New Jersey today? 

A Again, now that's a very broad question to which a broad 

answer is "organized crime, everyday crime and civil 

disorders. n 

Q Well, those are the three you would pick out. General, 

I'm not trying to trap you in any way. 

A I understand that, except the question is !Jti i :;'rt:H: 

wouldn't know where to start except in these large cate

gorical areas. 

Q Well, you are certainly, from the information you re

ceive under your own description of the duties of your 

office, as informed as anyone in the State, or, perhaps, 

more so. Now, the Committee is interested in the amount 

and nature of the crime problems in New Jersey because 

that is the workload of the system, and would you address 

yourself to that? We can take it by categories, if you 

•.;~ir;!l. I thought I'd givo you the opportunity to take 

it in your own fashion. 
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A I would suppose that the best way which I could approach 

this would be to pick up with you the analysis which was 

made by the President's Crime Report, because the very 

things which were contained in that report are the things 

which we are confronted with here in New Jersey, and 

they concern themselves with what I said were the three 

major problems. 

The one, for example, with 

respect to civil disorders, one of the big problems which 

we have in our state is the establishing of community 

relations in the various departments throughout the state 

to serve the very substantial minority populations which 

we have, for example. 

Q Do you categorize civil disorder as a crime problem? 

A It is when it gets to the point of looting and rioting, 

which generally comes along with it. When it comes to 

the point cf violating various laws when demonstrations 

are being conducted, breaking windows, lying down in 

the streets and preventing cars from passing by, barri

cading buildings and getting involved in assaults and 

batteries and things of that nature. And, of course, 

this tends to escalate. When it escalates, it becomes, 

I think, a very, very serious problem and a law enforce

ment problem. 

Q I'm not denying the seriousness. No, you primarily 



isolated three, "civil disorder, organized crime and 

juvenile delinquency 

A And everyday crime. 

Q You mean street crime? 
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A House crimes, we've had an upsurge of breaking and enter

ings as a matter of fact. 

Q I'm trying mentally to cope with the difference between 

everyday crime and juvenile delinquency. 

A Well, that's engaged in everyday crime. 

Q You do not, therefore, include narcotics? 

A To me that's an everyday crime. I will get into all of 

these things, but, you see, if you would pinpoint these 

things to me, it would be that much easier. By doing 

it in a very broad pervasive way 1 that's the way I have 

to do it. 

Narcotics is a problem, 

drunkenness is a problem, gambling is a problem. All of 

gambling and narcotics and loan sharking, as you know, 

infiltration of people from what you would tend to call 

the confederation, which is generally called the Cosa 

Nostra or Mafia or syndicate or organization getting 

into legitimate businesses, collusion in public bidding. 

I mean, all of these things tend, for example, all to 

focus in the organized crime area. 

Q You've mentioned organized crime a great deal. We have 
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to cope with it in some rational way. Why don't we take 

that first as an area? 

A All right. 

Q Now, would you tell the Committee what your approach or 

your plans are for combating organized crime in New Jersey? 

A While there is in my office a criminal investigation sec

tion, in my opinion it is not sufficient to meet the de

mands of this situation today. 

Q That's what you called the C.I.S. before? 

A Right. And the first thing that would be necessary would 

be to beef-up that particular section. Now, this year, 

for example, I have about sixty some lawyers in my office 

and this year I asked for an additional twenty, four of 

whom would have been assigned di rectl·t to the c. I. s. and 

two of whom would have been assigned directly to organized 

crime and nothing else. I have been allowed out of the 

twenty, end the twenty would cover my tdilale department, 

I've been allowed so far by budget, four. And I could 

indicate to you that of the four I already have eight 

places where I must put them. So this cute me back imme

diately on the one thing which I believe to be neceaeery 

in order to combat organized crime. 

Q When you say "by budget", to whom ere you referring to? 

A I am referring to the budget office which is in the 

Treasury Department which overviews the budget as sub-



73 

mitted by the various heads of the department for the ad

ministration, and then that is gi vf!n to t!1B Legislative 

Appropriations Committee for their overview and determina

tion as to what shall be done, and that ultimately finds 

its woy into a bill which is passed and then given to the 

Govern~r for his signature, and that constitutes the 

appropriation for the State. 

Q When the administration did not give you these four or 

five or eight positions, what did you tell them about the 

nr->turc :-end scope of the organized crime problem to which 

these persons would be addressed? 

A I've told them what I'm telling you, that it is necessary. 

And I've told them of the various things which are 

occurring in the State of New Jersey. 

Q Could you tell the Committee? 

A Well, I must indicate to you that many of these things are 

under investigation today, and I don't believe that it's 

in the interest of anyone in the state for me at this 

moment to declare openly what we are investigating. 

Q I might agree with you if you are talking about certain 

named individuals who are under investigation, but you 

can discuss things conceptually. There must be a way, 

as happens in Congress and many other places 

A Well, I've already indicated to you today that of the 

twenty-four families that are in existence in the United 
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States, seven of them either reside or have activities going 

in New Jersey. I indicated that to you at the very beginning 

when I spoke. Now, I think that indicates that if there is 

seven families in operation in New Jersey, something is going 

on and there is a problem present. 

Q Now, let's come back to what your plans are to do something 

about the seven families. 

A Well, the first thing is money and manpower and the C.I.S., 

the second is increasing the State Police resources, beef

ing up our intelligence unit and the task force which I 

mentioned to you before. I didn't give you the figures 

with respect to the number of men in the intelligence unit 

or the number of men in the organized task force because, 

again, I do not believe it to be in the public interest 

to give them in this open hearing. I would be glad to 

give them to you in executive session. But I would say, 

generally speaking, for the ~oblems involved, they are 

minimal. And, I indicated that we had asked for 220 men 

and we're being allowed 60. It seems to be perfunctory 

now, each year when we need more men, no matter how many 

we indicate we need, we get 60, and that is what has 

occ~rred this year. 

In addition to that, we've 

asked for legislative tools in the past, and we are still 

asking for them, and we are still moving forward with 

• 
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them, and I've noted that recently some legislation has 

been presented before this Legislature for enactment. 

And in the main they are a witness immunity law, my office 

has prepared a wire tapping legislation, which we think 

conforms in the case of Katz against the United States 

and to some extent is predicated upon what was indicated 

by the President's Crime Report Commission. 

Q Does it include eavesdropping as well as wire tapping? 

A Yes. I used wire tapping, actually I should say electronic 

eavesdropping. 

Q And you recommend such a bill? 

A I recommend that there be a dialogue with respect to such 

a bill. 

Q What does that mean? 

A What that means is that there be people get up and speak 

on both sides of the question, that is what I understand 

dialogue to be. 

Q Has the Governor taken a position on that bill? 

A I don't know whether the Governor has taken a position 

on it or not. 

Q What I'm trying to get at, you are giving us a list of 

your plans to combat organized crime. 

A Yes. 

Q I'm trying to find out if among your plans there be a 

recommendation that there be electronic eavesdropping. 
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A This is one of the things which I have been wrestling with 

for quite a period of time, that is with respect to elec-

tronic eavesdroppingQ 

I wrote an article on the 

computer in the invasion of privacy, whjch precedes an 

of 
article that you wrote in the CounciljStates publication, 

and I think some of my views are expressed there. I do 

believe that there is a lot to be said about invasion of 

privacy, and I think it becomes very important that we 

weigh all of these things in the balances, and it is 

very difficult for me to make up my mind while on one 

side that I recognize that there is organized crime and 

I recognize that there are people who say you cannot get 

to the higher-ups unless you have some wire tapping, and 

I recognize on the other side that there has been a great 

deal of wire tapping by many agencies, certain agencies 

in the country for many years, and not withstanding 

that~ there has not been too much conviction with the 

so-called real higher~ups~ 

Q That's due to legal problems which have only recently 

begun to see daylighto 

A Well, I don't know® If you read Katz against the United 

States very carefully, I think you will see the manner 

in which you can wire tap is so circumscribed that it 

might not be so all encompassing as you might think. You 
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have still got to be able to say to the court that you've 

engaged in all other kinds of surveilance and investiga

tive methods first, and that you've been unable to do any

thing with respect thereto, and you still have to indi

cate to the court the nature 'Of the conversation that 

you expect to seize. 

Q Is there any doubt in your mind that in order to get the 

evidence that you must get to convict the higher-ups, 

the right to eavesdrop is essential? 

A Yes, there is some doubt in my mind. 

Q Have you been getting that evidence in the past several 

years without the right to eavesdrop? 

A That's a loaded question. We are not allowed to wire tap 

in New Jersey by law. So, of course, we haven't had that 

evidence. 

Q That's what I'm getting at. 

A It's true that we haven't gotten to the higher-ups, but 

then I don't know that the F.B.I. has been so terribly 

successful in these many years with respect to these 

24 families in the United States, and they've been able 

to wire tap for many, many years. 

Q General, I wouldn't agree with that on any aspect of the 

statement about the bureau, whether they have the right 

to wire tap, the right to use it or have or have not 

been effective. 
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A I don't say whether they have the right to use it, but I 

think the history will recall to you that attorney generals 

have issued directives from World War II on giving the 
Section 

F.B.I. the right to wire tap in certain cases period. /605 

was interpreted by the attorney general as not permitting 

them to wire tap and pass on the information to other 

people. But this was also interpreted by the Attorney 

General of the United States as indicating that it could 

be used within the department. 

Q General, you are not really saying that you think the 

federal agencies have had a clear road to eavesdropping 

in the past few years? 

A No, I wouldn't say a clear road. Again, that's a very 

broad use of language. One would have to understand what 

you mean by a clear road. A clear road could also mean 

that theynot have to go to a court in order to get a 

warrant in a certain situation. This would mean the in-

discriminate wire tapping and electronic eavesdropping, 

which I, very frankly would oppose. If this were your 

idea of a clear road, I would be opposed to it. 

Q I don't have a clear idea of a road of that nature. I 

think both of us would share the view that any such sys-

tern would have to be under court control, and very tight 

control. 

The question is, however, 
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assuming you do have a court controlled system which is 

tightly controlled, do you recommend electronic eaves

dropping as a useful and important tool to fight organized 

crime in New Jersey today? 

A I say this would be a useful tool. At the present moment 

I am not sure whether in the balance -- this is myself 

speaking personally -- whether in a balance it would be 

an effective tool even to the extent of clearing up or

ganized crime problems. I note that, as a matter of fact, 

in the report which eminated from the Oyster Bay confer

ence, that there was an indication that these so-called 

higher-ups did not use telephones, that is directly 

themselves, did not become engaged in the criminal activi

ties themselves, but saw to it that others lower down 

in the line did. Now, I am not sure that if that is 

the case, and I accept it as such from the report of 

those that were present, that electronic eavesdropping 

or wire tapping would assist you in getting evidence to 

these particular people. But let me say this, because 

I think there is something first and foremost which has 

to be done which has not been done in these United States, 

and that is the professionalization of police forces, 

and you have to have that first and foremost before you 

start talking about a tool such as this. 

Q Well, organized crime is a current problem in New Jersey, 
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is it not? 

A Yes. 

Q As you say, there are seven families operating here now. 

Could one venture safely that a goal such as profession-

alization of police, however important, is five years 

away, four years away; and by making such a decision and 

judgement, don't you leave the field sort of abdicated 

during the interim of upgrading and professionalization? 
getting 

A Again you are/ broad and pervasive. It does not 

leave the field abdicated, because we work on this problem 

every day using hard and very good investigative law en-

forcement methods even without the use of wire tapping. 

Q Shouldn't both roads be pursued? 

A Well, that's the question you're asking me, and we're 

getting back to the same thing all over again. If this 

Legislature and the majority of the people are of the 

opinion that the kind of a wire tapping bill which my 

office has prepared and which I believe to be in the 

conformity with constitutional standards, and that's 

my job as attorney general, this Legislature passes 

such a bill, this instrument will be used and used in 

accordance with the law and the constitution. Now, 

you asked me my candid views, and these are my private 

views. It is just my feeling that there is this ques-

tion of invasion of privacy involved. No one, as far as 

.. 
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I'm concerned, I respectfully disagree with you, has been 

able to show that through wire tapping or electronic eaves

dropping they will be able to put the 24 families out of 

existence. New York used wire tapping and used the evi

dence in wire tapping up until the Bergen case, and this 

was good evidence in the State of New York, but New York 

has as big, if not a bigger organized crime problem than 

the State of New Jersey. So, this is no cure~all, this 

is a tool and the question, and I say at least in my 

personal mind is, and this is only a personal observation, 

do we do society more good or more harm with this kind 

of a tool? Now, this is the dialogue about which I'm 

speaking. I think the people of the state in a situation 

such as this have a right to speak their mind. The Legis

lature will then determine as representatives whether 

they feel it is more useful to have this and not be con

cerned with the invasion of privacy, and as I say, if 

they pass such legislation, I can assure you that it will 

be used to its fullest extent. This is my personal view, 

and this is not the view of the Colonel of the State 

Police, the superintendent, he favors it. His view may 

be better than mine, but you asked me for my view, I'm 

under oath and I'm giving you my honest view. 

Q Now, let's come back --

A If I may, you asked me what else I thought was necessary. 
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subpoena and I'm unable to -- and the State Polic8 i3 unable 

to ask a man to come to visit us, that is to make him come 

and visit us. 

Q I'm not clear. Power of whom to subpoena? 

A The power of the attorney general to subpoena someone to 

come before him in order to answer questions. 

Q You mean an administrative sort of subpoena? 

A Yes. 

Q Is there any police agency in the United States that hss 

the power of subpoena such as you are recommending, that 

is for the police to subpoena a citizen to corns to talk 

to the police at the police station? 

• 
A Well, because there you have the police operating through 

the prosecutor and the Grand Jury system. 

Q Yes, of course. 

A The attorney general does not have those people. If I get 

a State Grand Jury Act, I will have that. 

Q Thut 1 s a different thing, maybe I misunderstood you. Off-

hand I do not know of any police agency in the United 

States where the police level personnel have the power to 

subpoena citizens to themselves. Do you? 

A No, offhand I do not, except through the Grand Jury sys-

tern. 

Q The only possible exception might be the special agents 
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of the Internal Revenue Service which have the power to 

subpoena taxpayers down to administrative hearings which 

might turn into a criminal tax case. 

A We have the same thing in our division with respect to 

a motor vehicle, Bureau of Securities and Consumer Fraud, 

we have the power of subpoena to bring people in for 

administrative hearings -- and Division on Civil Rights. 

Q But administrative hearings are clearly different, I 

think you will agree. 

A Ves. 
powers 

Q So you are not suggesting subpoena~o the police? 

A No, no, only through a State Grand Jury. 

Q Continue? 

• A Which we think would be of vital assistance, especially 

with respect to the organized crime area. 

Q Are you recommending such a Grand Jury? 

A Ves, I am. 

Q Would it have statewide jurisdiction? 

A Ves. 

Q Where would it sit? 

A It would sit where the assignment judge recommends it, 

Superior Court. 

Q How do you cope with jurors, would they be drawn state-

wide? 

A Drawn from the panels of the county jury, but no more 



84 

than four from each county. That bill is already in the 

Legislature. 

Q I'm sorry, I don't understand. How would it work, would 

s Grand Juror drive from the north part of the state to 

the south, or vice versa for a day's hearing? 

A Yes, the same as whsn he goEs to a federal Grand Jury 

Q Whet is t~e need for that Grand Jury? 

A 8ec2use county prosecutors are circumscribed where organ-

ized crime is concerned because the activities go across 

the county lines and they become problems with respec to 

cess it is or where the venue shall be laid and 

was the crime committed and things of that nature. 

• 
Q Don't you resolve those conflicts of that nature as 

2ttorney general? 

A No, they're brought before the court. 

Q You mean two prosecutors contesting which has jurisdiction 

goes before the courts? 

A No, it is a m2ttrr of the defBnse coming in and stating 

that the venue is improperly laid. 

Q We are :n the invastigating stage now 

A I'm talking about presenting a c2se, not investigating 

q Well, in other words, are you saying thnt you now have 

casPs which are already prepcred and investig2ted --
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A No, no, I'm talking about the theory of the State Grand 

Jury. 

Q That's what I'm trying to get at. If you've got a case 

A The theory of the State Grand Jury is for the matter to be 

presented by the attorney general through Grand Jurors who 

are picked on a statewide basis rather than from a particu-

lar county, and it will be before a Grand Jury which will 

be selected by delving into the panels which have been 

selected or whichever way the Supreme Court will determine, 

because this would be their function by rules to establish 

how the Grand Jurors shall be picked. 

Q What I don't understand is the need for it which is not 

A 

Q 

now served by the present prosecutors and their Grand 

Juries? 

I'm sorry, what was that? 

I understand the mechanics of where the Grand Jurors would 

come from, what I don't understand is the need for this 
it is 

new kind of system unless/ not served or could not be 

served by the present prosecutors and their Grand Jurors. 

A Well, the county prosecutor by law can only indict for 

crimes which occur within his county. 

Q You and I know that if he has a multi-jurisdiction situa-

tion, he can put it in any one county which has suffi-

cient acts and involvement in that county, and there has 

to be some such county among the many where it occurred. 
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A Well, I don't like to be in the position of making a 

decision which is then to become a matter for a court case 

where some Appelleta Court later on may determine that 

the determination which we made in the first instance was 

wrong when we don't have to get into that. I mean, why. 

should we stick to a system which can develop into tech

nicalities whe~e someone can get off from something on a 

substantive charge where we could have eliminated the 

whole thing by having the statewide jurisdiction. We did 

the same thing with respect when we established the 

Superior Court in New Jersey, where county courts had 

county jurisdiction and Superior Courts had jurisdiction 

throughout the State. Then we didn't have to worry about 

where the automobile accident occurred. 

Q Let me come back to this, perhaps it would help if we 

separated several functions. The police in the investi

gative function from the prosecution function? Now, 

it seems to me that the police in the investigative func

tion can go on, as it does now, whether or not you have a 

statewide Grand Jury, and that question isn't involved 

at all. So then you come to the question of the prosecu

tor. At this point the police either have a case packaged 

up to give a prosecutor to present to a Grand Jury, or 

they have a case maybe half matured and they have to 

use the Grand Jury to investigate and assist, right? 

a 
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A True. 

Q Why can't that be given t6 ~ny prosecutors office either 

way? 

A It can and often is. But, again, as I stated, there may 

be questions involved as to where the actual crime was 

committed, and we may make a wrong determination in the 

first instance. Why should we have to rely on that? 

Also, you have got to remember that you are talking about 

here the State Police perform a certain function, and it 

is my opinion, although we definitely must have the 

assistance and co-operation of local police, that or

ganized crime could best be combatted through the State 

Police organization which can function statewide through

out the State, and when they get this information I think 

it is better if that information is handled through the 

attorney general's office rather than through one of the 

twenty-one county prosecutors. 

Q Aren't you really talking about the difficulties in a 

multi-jurisdiction case on an investigative level rather 

than on a prosecution level? You've got it investigated 

and you've isolated your defendants and you have your 

charge, and you know what you are after, then you can 

file it in any county. 

A I'm sorry, I don't think it fits into the pigeon hole 

that easily. 
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A The reason may be th2t aumebody storts it in Passaic County 

end somebody else winds up in Bergen County, and you have 

a question of where the actual crime was committed. 

Q Don't you have the power to co-ordinate these activities 

with the prosecutor? 

A That has nothing to do with venue, it has nothing to do 

with the defense attorney coming in and saying there was 

no crime committed in Bergen County. 

Q Maybe I don't understand, maybe you ought to move on to 

something else, because I don't see why it couldn't be 

done the other way, unless you are really telling me 

two things, the first is that the local police do not 

make organized crime cases very often, is that a fact? 

A I don't think they do. Again, you see, definition, when 

they picku~ gamblers or they pickup some narcotic people, 

which they ~~. they're part and parcel of the organized 

crime picture, but Ghat I'm thinking in terms of are 

these so-called heads of the families, captains, lieu

tenants and so on. These people, generally speaking, 

the local police do not get. 

Q Are cases against those people being made at all in New 

Jersey these days? 

A We have three thousand names under investigation. 

Q To say you have three thousand under investigation is 
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almost to say that there is so many nobodys, really, under 

investigation. You can't investigate three thousand people 

at once, it is impossible. 

A It oll dept:m:~, ! '/ '1ilat ':i'JU mean by investigation. 

n The whole fPdP?Pl government select list is only five 

thousand for the national. 

A If you are talking about making a case ng;'iiH:L many 

people, then the answer is yes. It all depends how you 

define investigation. I term investigation in this in

stance to mean that we are alerted to the possibility 

that there are these many persons who may be involved in 

organized crime activities. 

Q In New Jersey? 

A And on the basis or priority -- well, these people are 

connected in one form or another, who are so-called 

heads of families or high-up in the tlierr.chy of tl1ese 

families, and these people are in our files, and depending 

upon the priority and what's before us at the particular 

time, they ~rR RithP.r under current investigation or 

will be in some wuy sooner or later checked out to determine 

whether or not our suspicions are founded or unfounded, 

or whether they are engaged or not engaged in these ille

gal activities about which we are speaking. 

Q General, in other words, there are about three thousand 

people in New Jersey who are related, part of or partici-
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pnting in criminal activities 

A No, I didn't say thst, I s2id there are these three thousand 

r 
'.,( 

A 

names which we have gotten which in some form or another 

we feel may have a connection. 

To organized crime in New Jersey? 

To organized crime, and these will have to be checked out, 

they will be checked out, they are being checked out. 

But on the basis of priorities, we take those who we have 

more reason to believe ere involved first, and we work 

on them. 

Q Now, the othBr side of developing the case from the 

police is the orosscuto~. Are you saying that there are 

difficulties ~ith prosecutors in one way or another th~t lead 

you to ~ant to h~ve the statewide Grand Jury insofar as 

-~ses are concerned? 

difficulties 
A J~osecutors. I scid thBt the activity is 

t ~ =~-ard~~ tud when the State Police, who are under 

the jurisdictio~ =f the attorney general deal directly 

tdi th 1-. 
dlffi. This doesn't mesn that they do not today 

work with the 21 county prosecutors, they do. I'm talk-

ing now specifically in terms of a very distinct and 

important pro~lem end a very specific problem, with 

resoEct to organized crime, end that is where you and I 

both know that it is a situation that takes long, hard 

and tedious work and which takes long periods of time. 
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It is not generally done overnight. 

Q But the implication, the implication of what you are say

ing is that the combination of the municipal or local 

police and county prosecutors has been unsuccessful in 

reaching the high-ups in organized crime in New Jersey, 

and that you prefer a new combination, State Police and 

attorney general? Is that a fair conclusion? 

A May I answer it in my own way? 

Q Yes. 

A I would say that the problem of organized crime exists 

throughout these United States and it is not a matter 

which is specifically to be attributed to the State of 

New Jersey, and any failure on the part of the prosecutors 

or local police in the State of New Jersey as such, I am 

saying that in order to get at the problem in a better 

way I do believe that it would be better to co-ordinate 

the facilities at the state level and have state investi

gators handle this problem directly with the attorney 

general so that the matter need not be proliferated 

through the 21 county prosecutors. And I think this would 

be a better method of coping with the problem. Your 

Grand Juries within a given county today are not per

mitted to go beyond their county lines. 

Q You mean physically to go beyond, can't they get a witness 

from beyond the county? 
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A Sure. They can get a witness byeond county lines. 

Q For investigative purposes? 

A Sure, of course. But the investigation starts before the 

Grand Jury, and when you have 8n investigative unit --

MR. LUMBARD: May I only say 

that the Chairman has said to me th2t it is lunch time? 

SEN. FORSYTHE: It is now 

12:40, we will take a full hour, return at 1:40. We will 

adjourn for lunch. 

(At which time the hearing 

adjourned until 1:40 P.M. for lunch.) 

SEN. FORSYTHE: We will call 

the hearing back into order, and, Mr. Lumbard, if you 

wish to proceed? 

CONTINUATION BV MR. LUMBARD: 

Q General, when may the Legislature expect the eavesdropping 

bill that you said you had drafted? 

A Well, if I may explain this way -- you will recall I in

dicated to you that I thought that a bill of this type 

was of such public importance that I felt that there 

should be what I termed a dialogue, that the public be 

aware of this kind of a measure and that the representa

tives of the public have some idea as to what the people 

might think with respect to this on both sides. I~ line 

with that, the Governor of our State appointed an execu-
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tive commission known as the Cbuncil against Crime. This 

was along the lines of some thirty other states, and in 

accordance with the President's crime commission report 

with its primary import to obtain funds when possible from 

the so-called Safety in the Streets Act, which we hope 

Congress will enact sometime in this late spring now. JUst 

the other day, last Thursday I believe it was, we 

took the draft of the bill which my office had prepared, 

from a period of time emaneting from after Katz until 

February, and as a matter of fact, I've had conversations 

with respect to this bill with Elliott Richardson of Massa

chusetts and Herbert De Simeone of Rhode Island and James 

Irwin of Maine, all of whom are interested in pretty much 

the same thing. And, after collating information with 

them and having some ideas with respect to what should be 

contained in such a bill, we put ours together and we 

presented it to the Council Against Crime last Thursday. 

In addition to that, the Obuncil was also visited by 

Mr. Andreoli, who I believe you know, who is a senior 

D. A. in Mr. Hogan's office in New York, and he explained 

to them the manner in which wire tapping could be used 

and what he thought to be the effectiveness cr -- when 

I say wire tapping, I mean electronic surveilance too. 

What he thought to be the use of it and so on. 

In addition to that, there 
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was a demonstration given by the telephone company, and' 

then there was a dissertation on the law by my first assis

tant, Mr. Hoffman, who sits next to me, and who was in 

charge of criminal investigations up until this past 

January when my first assistant became a Superior Court 

judge and Mr. Hoffmansucceeded to his position, at which 

time Mr. Hayden, who sits next to Mr. Hoffman became the 

criminal investigation director. Mr. Hayden being the 

senior man in that position prior thereto. So new it's 

before this Council Against Crime, and I hope to get a 

recommendation from the particular committee in that 

council to which it was given, which is known as Organized 

Crime Committee, and then it can be taken up with the 

entire council, and then a recommendation from them will 

emanate to the Legislature. 

Q When? 

A Well, it's all a question of time. I don't know. I can't 

answer that. As a matter of fact, I may point out to you 

that this council now was created on January 4. We've 

had meetings on 2/9/68, 3/8/68, 3/11/68, 3/19/68, 3/21/68 

and 3/22/68. 

Q All on eavesdropping? 

A No, no. These are matters on witness immunity, on every-

day crime, ~ioting as a matter of fact, there are six 

committees which have bean established. These committees 

• 
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are planning committees, training and standards committees, 

committee on correction, a committee on organized crime, 

a committee on local crime and civil disorders, and a 

committee on science and technology. It is my function 

to t~y to channel the workloads so that we can move as 

quickly as possible and not have one committee backed-up. 

This I feel, this wire tapping I feel, could be more per-

tinent to the organized crime area and that's the reason 

why I funnelled it into the organized crime section. 

Th2t organized crime section happens to be headed by a 

Mr. Thompkins,who was a former U. S. attorney and a 

former assistant United States Attorney General, and I'm 

sure that he will act quite promptly with respect to this 

matter which is before me. But, I'm not in a position 

of o~ving you B timRtable with respect to when Mr. 

Thompkins and his conrnittcc "will work on this. Now, 

of course, in the meantime this does not prevent the 

legislature or any member thereof from drafting its own 

bill. 

Q All I did was start out with a simple question, "When 

might the legislature expect your bill?" 

A I gave a simple answer. 

Q The way you've described this group, it goes far beyond 

the scope of a m8re recipi~nt ogency for, 

federal monny, under the Safe Streets and Crime ·controlAct 

if and when it comes. Do you plan to use this Council 
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in effect, for the task/ reorganization of the state level 

latu enforcement struct:.Jre? 

A Vas. Vou had asked me 8 question before and I hadn't fin-

ished the answer. Unfortunately in a diaJogue of this 

kind, a question leads tomother question and another 

question, and we never get back to the original question 

which from you to me was, "What were your plans with 

respect to dealing with crime in the State?" And I had 

indicated to you certain things, the first thing was, I 

think, the question of manpower, and I don't think we 

can overlook that. That is first and foremost, the 

problem here in this State, even if we ~ave wire tapping, 

it's my understanding, as Mr. Andreoli's, if you desire 

to have a twenty-four tapping, you'd need eight to ten 

men for that one tap. Now, this means manpower. I 

appreciate the reason why, but, I wasn't able to give 

you our entire workload, but, if I cPn give you my entire 

workload, you would see that whatever available manpower 

we hnve is more than utilized at the present mo~~nt, so 

that e•··::n if the Legislature should pass an electronic 

eavesqropping or wire tappi~g piece of legislation, we 

would still be in need of the manpower to man the tools. 

Q General, I think we are drifting off here. I agree with 

you, but the question I have pending is the Council, as 
step 

you have describr>d it, c fi ::-st or final/LOoki.r1g tO!·JPrd a 

. 
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reorganization on the state 1 ''\:r·l. of 

forcement and criminal justice. 

A This Council was organized first for the purpose of being 

able to take advantage of the Safe Streets and Crime Con-

trol Act. However, for two years I have advocated for 

the State of New Jersey what I call an On-going Crime 

Commission, which would study continuously law enforcement 

in the State of New Jersey, which would recommend certain 

things to the police agencies in New Jersey, which would 

recommend when necessary the reformation of our criminal 

laws, which would look into things like regionalization 

or pooling or consolidation of forces. In. other words, 

mass attack. This would have been one the answers which 

I would give you for the question which you posed origin-

ally. 

Q Would you give that Council or that group subpoena powers, 

power to hold hearings? 

A I would, but, of course, that is an executive commission 

and it doesn't have it. Now, I have spoken to the members 

of the Legislature and I have indicated to the members of 

the Legislature that I would very much appreciate if they 

would give us both monp,y and subpoena powers. 

f{ Well, I 'rn ttut discussing the organization of this particular 
council, 

I what I'm more concerned with is the function. Do you 

feel, as I gather you feel, that there should be some 
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state level agency with subpoena powers, hBoring powers, 

continually reviewing what's going on in the criminal 

justice system, is that right? 

A I feel that they should be set up as a master planning 

agency. 

Q I don't know what a master planner is, I'm not sure of 

what would be a master planning agency. 

A I don't want to delve into a manner which, for example, 

zoning ordinances in various communities are established, 

but they're first established by master plans, and the 

master plans are established by virtue of the committee 

getting together and determining what the facts are in 

a given state, what the needs are and what must be done in 

order to put these things together in order to come to a 

solution. In my mind this is master planning. Now, in 

this particular situation, far example, this kind of 

a committee would have to determine, for example, if w~ 

need more centralization, if we need better co-ordination 

in order to have better law enforcement, to allocate the 

various resources which we may have in this state. Hnw 

one may be used one place or another. Now, for exam~le 

Q :'!<:me of those things now take place in your department? 

A Oh, of course, they take place today'~- tut there is a cer

tain fragmentation. Now, at the moment, for example, I 

have to serve perts of this function, Council Against 
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Crime serves part of this function. Now, of course, I 

serve with them, so that's being put together. The Legis

lature has a function in this respect, and I don't know 

how many other agencies might be working on plans~rif this 

kind. 

Q I gather you feel, therefore, that there is an important 

change that must be made whether in one form or another 

that will improve the quality of what's going on in the 

criminal justice system in New Jersey? 

A I think it is needed in every state. 

Q Is that the major point? 

A I think this is needed in every state. 

Q Well, in New Jersey. I'm not concerned with every state 

at this point? 

A I believe it is needed in every state. 

Q While we were at lunch one of the committee members asked 

me if you would merely state the names of the seven or

ganized crime families that operate in New Jersey with

out getting involved in any investigations or current 

activities? 

A Genovese, Lucchese, Gambino, Columbo, Bonanno or DeGregorio~ 

Q You are using that as alternatives? 

A Yes. Those are the five we believe located in the New 

York Metropolitan area~nd also 

The Brunos, which emanates 
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from Philadelphia, and DeCalvalcante. 

Q Is it possible to say in any respect, again without com

promising anything, where in New Jersey these people oper

ate, or do they overlap or what? 

A We feel there is an overlapping. 

Q An overlapping throughout the state? 

A Yes. 

Q Without jurisdictional areas or territories? 

A Yes. Our determination has been that there is not this 

cutting up and assigning of a particular section to a 

particular family. There is a certain amount of compe

tition and, therefore, overlapping. 

Q Would that be by subject to criminal activity or just 

generally, all activities, whatever its nature? In other 

words, would a particular subject like narcotics be 

divided up, although the families might overlap in terms 

of other activities? 

A No, all activities. 

Q All activities are mixed up? 

A You don't find any particular segregation either as to 

the subject matter or geography, there is an overlapping. 

Q Could you characterize for the committee thE dimension 

of the organized crimes problem presented by the seven 

families in New Jersey, in some way? How would you de

scribe it to the public in gross situation? Is it 
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important, not so important? Is it major? I don't think 

you have described the problem in any respect. 

A Well, of course, it is always a very difficult thing to 

establish in terminology, mostly because it is almost like 

an iceberg, I mean you see a little bit on top and you 

feel there is so much more underneath, yet, at the same 

time you are unable to reveal exactly what is underneath. 

Now, we know from the investigations that we conduct, 

even though the kind of information we get is not eviden

tial and presentable before a Grand Jury, that there is, 

let's say, great activity. And I don't know that I can 

use another phrase. Great activity. Gambling -- no 

question. Loan sharking -- no question. Infiltration 

into legitimate business areas -- we have reason to be

lieve that there is a great deal of that. Now, I cannot 

define for your what I mean by a great deal, except to 

say that it is enough for us to take note and to take 

determinative steps in order to try to prevent it from 

spreading further, and, as a matter of fact, to limit 

it. 

Q Would it be possible to say, if only to alert the public 

and business men involved, what businesses are particular

ly involved in the problem of infiltration at the present 

time? 

A Well, again, if I had evidence of that, it would be one 
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thing. I have hearsay information, and I hesitate very 

much --

Q General, I'm not asking you to name a particular company 

by name, but industry, what is the industry? 

A If I give industry it is, in effect, pointing to certain 

people, and those of us here in the State of New Jersey 

know this, once I say something -- I don't mind saying 

this to you in executive session, but I don't believe I 

ought to do it here in the public forum. 

Q Well, I'll only say this, that part of your problem, I 

understand, in New Jersey and elsewhere in prosecuting 

organized crime is to gain potential witnesses, the 

greatest difficulty is obtaining evidence, and without 

the evidence you can't prosecute0 That means you've got 
of civic responsibility, 

to get a climate of public acceptance/ which produces 

for you on certain occasions certain amounts of those 

witnesses. 

Secondly, business men, 
that 

labor union leaders in certain area~ have that activity, 

which might have been a problem,could be alerted. I 

recognize full well the inhibitions and the propriety 

in being specific, which is a different thing. 

A Well, in this individual case, being general, it may in 

many instances be specific at the same time, and I must 

say that I'm very happy to give that information to 

.. 

, 
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any member of the Legislature -- of this committee in 

executive session, but not in a public hearing. 

Q All right. General, I will ask you directly, would you 

favor a centralization of the prosecution function in 

New Jersey under your office? 

A Well, I started to answer this before. What I favor is 

something which I have tried to work out and am in the 

process of working on now. That is that all appellate 

matters should be handled by the attorney general, not 

the trial masters, and if I could relieve my deputies 

from going in, for example, and trying some cases before 

county Grand Juries, which is sometimes the case, then 

I could establish the system and I think we need legis

lation for it whereby county prosecutors could lend 

assistance from one county to another. 

Q What about post-conviction remedies? 

A We would take post-conviction remedies too, I consider 

that an after-trial procedure. I think for the purpose 

of uniformity and establishing a proper policy would 

be better emanating from a central office. 

Q But you are not in favor of central prosecution under 

your direction? 

A Central prosecution, no, I thin': ."t pnses too many 

problems. 

Q What are some of the major problems? 
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A Well, covering the whole state~ 

Q Well, I'm not sure I follow that. The United States Attornevs 

svstem under the Department of Justice is centralized and 

covers the whole United States. 

A But he doesn't run the gamut of cases that we run in the 

state. 

Q I'm trving to get at what the conceptual functional dif-

ference is from one as to the other and whv vou oppose 

it? 

A He would find it verv difficult to obtain as manv lawvers 

as would be necessarv to handle it, that's number one. 

It is a monev problem. The wav things are now, the 

countv, for example, pavs the assistant prosecutors. Under 

the plan which vou suggest the state would be paving. 

Q I'm not suggesting anvthing~ I'm merelv inquiring. 

A This is one of the reasons I understood it to be a recom

mendation from vou, but not withstanding, it seems to me 

that the trial matters are handled verv nicelv todav in 

the evervdav cases bv the countv prosecutors, and if I 

could, in co-operation with the prosecutors, and, bv the 

wav, I've surveved all of them and thev think it would 

be a good idea too, if I could usa their men so that 

if there were a conflict in one office, they could use a 

man from another countv to handle that, then all the 

appellate matters would be picked up, relieving them of 

• 
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that burden, and on that kind of centralization I'd recom

mend it. 

Q General, what are your plans, or what is the state adminis

tration plans to combat narcotic addiction and drug abuse, 

dangerous drug abuse? 

A Well, the state itself has passed a number of laws in the 

past few years. I believe it was in 1966 we passed a law 

which was somewhat based upon the President's Crime Report 

study. We changed the penalties, we provided for a com

mitment in lieu of jail with respect to addicts. I don't 

think it has worked very well and I think we've got to 

do something else. I've been discussing with the Governor 

something similar to what is done either in California 

or in the State of New York. This is what we feel, at 

least my point of view, should be done in the narcotics 

area. 

Q That is civil commitment programs? 

A Yes. I think the most importan~ feature, it seems to me, 

is the treatment. Now, I've always taken this point of 

view, first of all that narcotics users are sick peonle, 

but not withstanding the fact that they are sick people, 

if they commit a crime other than just the use of narcot

ics, then in some form or other they have to suffer a 

penalty for the commission of that crime. On the other 

hand nothing is achieved merely by committing them and 
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then letting them go free again into the community where 

they probably go back to their old habits for the same 

reason that they started in the first place. 

Q Of course, that depends on the program and how you work 

it. It doesn't have to happen that way? 

A Well, of course, you are not giving me the opportunity to 

answer the question. And that's where I think we've got 

to place our major emphasis, which means that we have to 

concern outselves with the treatment of these people and 

with the treatment of these people it is my feeling that 

this should be centralized and it should be on a state 

basis here in New Jersey. 

Q Under a new state agency or under a present state agency? 

A Well, I'm not qu~te sure at the moment just what the or

ganizational chart should be. 

Q Are you going to make a recommendation to the Legislature 

this session to that end? 

A Let me say this, that ordinarily that matters come within 

the province of institutions and agencies here in the 

State of New Jersey and our health commissioner. I, 

of course, as you probably know, always put my two cents 

in, but the primary furiction there belongs to those 

particular departments, except, again, for the fact that 

we do have a narcotics advisory council, and as attorney 

general I sit on that council and, therefore, make any 
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recommendation to that council, which in turn reports to 

the Commissioner of Institutions and in turn reports to 

the Governor. 

Q Perhaps you can answer this yes or no. Is there going to 

be a narcotics program sent to the Legislature this year 

from the administration? 

A I have to say I don't know at this moment. 

Q Very well. The Governor's annual message to the Legis

lature includes a large discussion on the subject of 

crime and crime control. Many bills are mentioned. When 

may the Legislature expect to receive the full package 

of all those bills? 

A Well, the Legislature has already received witness immu

nity, which was mentioned by the Governor. We spoke 

about mid-Atlantic State Police compact, that's now in 

the Senate Committee, public defender for juveniles, 

that's now in the Senate Committee, loan sharks, to the 

Senate on second reading, waterfront and airport com

mission compact, in the Senate on second reading; out

of-state gun purchases, in the Senate in committee; 

appropriations for the State Police and civil disorders, 

passed in both Houses; CAC appropriation, in the Assembly 

and Committee; explosives and ingredients related to 

the weapon control law, in the Assembly in Committee; 

medical examiner and laboratory appropriation, in the 
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Assembly Committee; State Grand Jury Act, ready for intro

duction; witness immunity was introduced yesterday, I be

lieve. It had been given and was ready for introduction 

a week or two ago. Intrasta.te anti-trust, we are work

ing on that right now, and that should be ready within 

a week or ten days. Wire tapping, I explained that to 

you and I have no particular date, although I will say 

that legislation that we've drafted is available for any 

Legislator ~ho would like to look at it. Blue ribbon 

review of our criminal statutes, this is being studied 

by our council against crime, by scholarships, police 

centers for college training, also with the C.A.C., 

police cadet, C.A.C.; hiring civilians for police chores, 

C.A.C.; lateral entry for police, in the C.A.C •• Now, 

those are the ones which deal directly on the package 

which was presented by the Governor 

Q C.A.C. is Council Against Crime? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, is a determined effort going to be made in that 

council to breakout things that are before it that have 

to do with the potential legislation this session within 

the reasonably near future? 

A Yes. 

Q When might the Legislature expect these various study 

matters that are now before the Council? 

~' 
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A It's up to the members of the Council Against Crime. I 

have already been admonished by one of the members, Mr. 

Stretch, that I'm calling meetings too rapidly and too 

quickly, and the council members are unable to meet 

the short notices which are givens So, in dealing with 

these men I must take into account the fact that they 

are very responsible citizens and have other functions 

as well, and also the fact that we are working without a 

staff because we don't have money, and the staff has been 

assigned to the council by me out of my office, which to 

a certain extent has fragmented the duties of the people 

in my office, and, again, I spoke to the members of this 

Legislature last week, hoping that perhaps we would be 

able to get an appropriation which we will be able to 

match from OLEA, ~hich would enable us to get an executive 

director and full time staff, in which event these things 

would come out much more rapidly and they could be work

ing on it, prior to the time they come in to the final 

session. 

Q General, what you've said about the difficulties with 

the Council leads one to, perhaps, observe a regular 

important state function is involved, perhaps it is a 

miscasting of an advisory type group to put them into 

the posture where state business gets held back because 

they're non-compensated, part time, although very well 
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meaning, perhaps the reasonable answer is to house those 

important functions in a regular government agency, whatever 

it might be~ 

A There are 30 states which have done it just about the same 

as we have done it here, fortunately in some of those 

states, like in Massachusetts the Legislature saw fit, 

in that case a Democratic Legislature to give to a 

Republican Governor and a Republic Attorney General some

thing like $35,000 to get them started. This can be done. 

And also the manner in which we are set up --

Q I think you misinterpreted me --

A -- , the manner in which it is setup conforms with the 

President's Crime Commission Report called for, and 

Q 

this is the kind of committee that is going to be in a 

position of getting money from the federal government, 

whereas the kind of committee that you are talking about, 

where are we going to get money for many things that we 

have to do, and I think that we've got to have that 

kind of a commission which can get these monies from the 

federal government~ 

Well, General, I'm not talking about the federal govern-

ment, nor am I talking about whether or not it is neces

sary to qualify for federal funding to have such a com-

mittee, because you and I know it isn't. You could 

qualify your own office for the federal agency if you 
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wish to. 

What I'm trying to say is if 

important legislation is being held back because part time, 

unpaid gentlemen, however abled and good-willed, cannot 

get to it, and the legislation sessions might go by with

out the recommendations, perhaps the wrong function is 

involved here. 

A I think the record will indicate that nothing has been 

held back. 

Q The Legislature will get those bills in? 

A I've already testified they have some of these bills. 

Q I'm talking about the full package which has to be assessed 

together? 

A Well, now eleven of the things which I mentioned, out of 

twenty, are already in the Legislature. 

Q General, is there anything that the Council can do that 

you can't do in your office?' 

A Yes, give me a very broad prospective point of view. 

Because if we had the time, of course the members of the 

Legislature know I could give you the names of the people 

who are on this Council. I think that you will find 

that it has elements of everything which we need necessary; 

law enforcement, business people, public support, local 

officials, and I think all of this is necessary if you 

want to come up with something which the people of the 
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state are going to accept. 

Q In other words, the real value to them that you find unique, 

it serves a sort of cross-section interpretation of the 

community, is that it? 

A 

Q 

That's one of the big factors. 

What other values does it have that cannot be served by 

the Legislature or by you in your office? 

A I think it has greater expertise in these areas than the 

Legislature per se. 

Q Expertise? 

A Yes. 

Q Your office would have the same? 

A Sure, my office could have the same. But you go ahead 

and give me the 20 deputies that I asked for, or make 

the recommendation and let the Legislature give it to 

me, yes, we will do the same job. 

Q There are several recommendations that were made in the 

civil disorder report that --

A Excuse me, we will do the same job from the point of 

view of expertise. Whether or not we will get the same 

public acceptance, I don't know. 

Q There are various recommendations in the Governor's 

Committee reports on civil disorder, some have to do 

with crime and law enforcement, as I'm sure you are 

aware. May the Legislature expect those in the near 

": 
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future, or is the Governor going to present a package? 

A That has not been presented to me, I don't know. I can't 

answer that. 

Q Are you part of making those decisions, your office? 

A It depends on what you are talking about. 

Q I'm talking about the crime law enforcement recommendations? 

A Which ones? 

Q Police training, police standards, in terms of Grand Jury 

and Newark? 

A All right, if you just give me one at a time I'll answer 

them all for you. I can't sit here like an encyclopedia 

and remember each and every recommendation in the report. 

Q 

A 

Let's take the one that has to do with corruption in Essex 

County • 

The matter has been already forwarded to the prosecutor of 

Essex County, and he's already on his investigation and 

he will determine after his investigation whether or not 

he has sufficient evidence to present to a Grand Jury. 

Q Now, do you play a role in·any of those decisions? 

A I played a role in the decision with the Governor as to 

who should handle the original investigation. 

Q Whether that would be the prosecutor of that county or 

not, or what was the decision to be made? 

A That's right. Well, if you read the report, the report 

said there were three alternatives, either the prosecutor, 
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the attorney general or a particular statute in the State 

of New Jersey which LLlould permit the citizens to be called 

together in New Jersey by the assignment judge. We went 

over this and discussed the matter, and the Governor, the 

former prosecutor, Mr.Byrne, who is now president of 

the Public Utility Commission, and the present prosecutor, 

Mr. Lordi, and as a result of those conferences, Mr. Lordi 

was asked to conduct the investigation. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Mr. Lumbard, 

I think at this time, if members of the committee want 

to ask questioris, because we do want to keep to our 

schedule. While it may develop, Mr. Attorney General, 

that before we complete our complete hearing, we may 

want to ask you back and work out a convenient arrange

ment. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: As you 

know, Mr. President, I pledged my co-operation within 

the limits of my schedule. I certainly will make myself 

available. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: I would 

like to start in this area by going back to an area we 

covered this morning having to do with your ability to 

get out the reports on the Uniform Crime, and you in

dicated you had a staff problem here, and you've told 

us that you were short in terms of the State Police and 

., 

., 
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in some of your other areas, but I would gather that this 

would be in your civil employees, in your department, that 

you need additional personnel and you have made a request 

for the ensuing budget which has not been granted. But 

I ask you, of the 298 budgeted positions that you have 

as of this current fiscal year, how many of those are 

filled? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I can't 

answer offhand. I will certainly have that information 

on Friday. As you know, I am to appear before the Legis-

lative Appropriation -- excuse me, on Thursday, Thursday, 

and I will have that information ready there. I don't 

have it before me at the moment. 

EXAMINATION 
BY SEN. FORSYTHE: 

Q Well, the point is, is it b questionof being able to 

recruit or a question of budgeted positions? 

A Well, it depends on what area, for example, that we are 

talking about. For example, if we are talking about 

chemists for the State Police, we are unable to recruit 

at the salary which has been set up, for example, see? 

In other areas we can recruit. 

Q In the area of getting these crime reports collated 

and so forth? 

A As far as the crime reports, let me say this to you, if 
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you pose that question to the Colonel, I'm sure that he 

is in a better position to respond to what the problems 

are with respect to collating the information from the 

Uniform Crime Committee than I am. I have great reliance 

and great respect for the superintendent of our State 

Police, and, very frankly, when I call him and I ask him 

whether or not the report is ready, and he says to me we 

are having certain problems, I only say are they problems 

with which I can help? If he says not at this moment, 

I leave it and I leave the delegation of authority to 

him to work out those particular problems. So I am sure 

he's in a better position to tell you what the problems 

may be other than I. The policies -- I would be involved 

in them. 

Q Well, we will be glad then to wait until the Colonel is 

on the stand. 

Do you have any difficulty 

in getting these records from the local police? 

A Well, as I recall it, again the Colonel could answer it 

better, or one of his men, that the only kind of diffi-

culties would be mechanical difficulties. First of all, 

in getting used to the form which has been set up and 

in sitting down with the various police officials in 

each municipality and getting them to understand what 

was meant by some things on the form, and then sometimes 

.' 

I 

.i 
I 



117 

the problem of reporting improperly so that someone had to 

go back to the particular agency to inform them that they 

had made a mistake. As a matter of fact, I must point 

this out, when my office originally drew this legislation 

we called for monthly reports. For some reason unknown to 

me the Legislature at that time did not want to empower 

us to receive monthly reports, and they said that I could 

only demand the reports quarterly, not withstanding that 

every chief of police is more than happy and does report 

on a monthly basis as a matter of discretion, because 

they know that this is truly the only way in which it can 

be done. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Thank you. 

Members of the Committee? 

EXAMINATION 
BY SEN. MC DERMOTT: 

Q Gen. Sills, I must confess, I was very astonished by 

this revelation that there are seven Cosa Nostra families 

operating in New Jersey, I guess this is pretty old hat, 

isn't it? 

A Oh, yes, I guess the Life Magazine last September mentioned 

all this, the Associated Press, I believe the United Press 

and other newspapers in New Jersey have indicated this 

from time to time. 

Q I presume that your State Police knew about this prior 
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to the life story? 

A The State Police have had information concerning this for 

many, many years. 

Q In general, what was the delay in setting up this organ-

ized crime section in your department? If I understood 

your direct testimony, you said it was created in October 

of '67. 

A That's the organized crime task force in the State Police. 

Originally it was known as the investigative unit. It 

contained responsibility which was beyond that of organ-

ized crime. In 1966, I believe it was, Col. Kelly formed 

an intelligence unit within the State Police and after 

the intelligence unit was finished with this kind of work, 

the Colonel was of the opinion that the follow-up should 
•' 

be through a specific task force bureau to follow out 

the leads which would be given to them by the intelligence 

unit. Therefore, it was broken out of the investigators 

unit and setup as a separate unit to do just this kind 

of work. 

Q As of October, '67? 

A Yes. The only reason why, things occur, Senator, as a 
., 

matter of priority. And where you sting the most at a ! 

particular moment is where you apply some ointment to 

try to remedy the situation. We lack manpower. I could 

give you figures which would show you that we could use 
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every member of the State Police just doing highway patrol. 

So, as I say, on a matter of balances, we have to shift 

and twist and turn and try to apply our forces as best 

we can where the priorities demand. 

Q General, with regard to these monthly gambling reports you 

received from the police chiefs, what have they generally 

shown, an increase in gambling? 

A They show a variety of things. They do show that gambling 

doesn't stop in one jurisdiction. It goes across nitmici

palities, across county lines. In fact, aci~oss state 

lines. As a matter of fact, a lot of that information 

when ch~nneled into the State Police, they're able to 

work-up and form a basis, many times for raids, which we 

conduct. But this information which may come from a 

local man may not assist him within his municipality, 

but it may assist us, because it gives us an indication 

many times of where certain people are appearing. So 

we know they are traveli~g from one place to another 

and this gives us an opportunity to find out why they're 

traveling from one place to another. Many times we find 

out because they are living in one place and conducting 

their operations elsewhere. 

Q Which counties are the worse offenders? 

A I couldn't answer that question. I think this is a state

wide problem. 
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Q Would some counties have greater incidents of these crimes 

than others? 

A Are we talking about gambling? 

Q Yes. 

A Wherever you find the greatest number of population, you 

find the greatest number of incidents. 

Q And has there been an increase in gambling in these coun-

ties in recent years? 

A Again, I don't know if there's been an increase. It's 

hard to say, I'm of the opinion that there is probably 

more gambling today only because we are more affluent 

today in society than we were some years ago. But I 

say this, the more manpower you would give us and the 

more opportunity we would have to investigate, we would 

never run out of cases, ·~n my opinion, and, of course, 

the more manpower you have, the more raids you have. 

If you look at the statistics, you would say that 

gambling is increasing, it would only mean actually that 

law enforcement is better because we have more men to 

apply to it. 

Q Do you use these reports as a basis for making raids, 

is that it? 

A Well, as a basis for intelligence, which sometimes de-

velops into a further investigation, the making out of 

search warrants and, yes, conducting of a raid. 
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Q Suppose in a given municipality, the police force was .not 

doing its job, and yet the rest of the county indicated 

a high incidence of organized gambling, which I presume 

comes under the syndicate. When you see this one town as 

not having enough arrests, as compared to the rest of the 

municipalities around it, what do you do? 

A Well, the State Police have their methods of investigation 

and their own undercover men. And we belive these areas 

are covered to the best of the ability of our manpower. 

Q In other words, you might suspect there is something 

wrong in that particular town and conduct an investigation? 

A Oh, yes. We've been in positions, very frankly, where 

we've gotten a call from a chief saying he wanted the 

assistance of the State Police because his men were known 

in that area, and then we've picked up his reports and 

we found nothing in his reports indicating that he sus

pected gambling going on, and at that point we asked 

him, "You didn't indicate you had it, why do you indicate 

you need help now?" And whatever his answer was, we 

supplied the help. 

MR. LUMBARD: Does the Gover-

nor here have the right to remove police chiefs? 

A There is a statute, I don't think he has the direct right 

to remove a police chief, let me say that first --

MR. LUMBARD: But do you 
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think he should have that power? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Excuse me 

for a moment. There is a statute which indicates that 

if law enforcement points out to a chief of police where 

there is gambling activity, he doesn't do anything about 

it, he can be subjected to a criminal penalty. 

MR. LUMBARD: Has that 

happened in New Jersey lately? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Well, 

before I was attorney general, I believe such an incident 

crcciurred, I believe, in Camden. 

MR. LUMBARD: But it hasn't 

happened during your tenure? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No. 

MR. LUMBARD: Do you think 

the Governor should have the direct power to remove police 

chiefs? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Again, 

I hate to answer that question quickly. There is this 

question in my mind about home rule or local rule, and 

just where the state fits into the picture or the county 

fits into the picture, and where a locale fits into a 

picture. 

MR. LUMBARD: Even though 

the chief isn't doing the job? 

• 
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ATTY.GEN. SILLS: If the chief 

isn't doing the job, there is no reason why the mayor in 

the town shouldn't have that function. I don't know why 

the Governor should have that function. 

MR. LUMBARD: Suppose the 

mayor doesn't exercise it? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: If a man 

is guilty of malfeasance in office, and the matter is 

brought to our attention, we will present it to a prose

cutor so that he presents it to a Grand Jury. 

happened during your tenure? 

MR. LUMBARD: Has that 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: Police chief? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. As 

a matter of fact, one of them was overturned recently in 

the United States Supreme Court. 

MR. LUMBARD: How many times 

has it happened since you have been attorney general? 

can't answer that. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Dh, I 

MR. LUMBARD: A dozen? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I won't 

get into a numbers game, I don't know. 
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EXAMINATION 
BY SEN. WALDOR: 

Q Getting back to the general question of centralization in-

sofar as law enforcement is concerned, you are, technically 

at least, head of the prosecutors of the 21 counties. Would 

that be a fair statement to make? 

A I don't believe so. 

Q You can establish policy, can you not, insofar as pure law 

enforcement is concerned for the prosecutors in the 21 

counties? 

A I can give guidance. 

Q Fine. You used the term "priorities" before, and it's a 

term I'm greatly interested in. You indicated in your 

direct testimony, as I recall it, that there were three 

general categories of crime. I think you said "organized, 

everyday," and what was the third, juvenile? 

A Civil disorders. 

Q Yes, civil disorder. And I'm in agreement with the es-

tablishment of these categories. Have you, however, with-

in these categories established any priorities as to what 

crimes, for example, in the area of organized crime, 

everyday crime -- let's leave out civil disturbances for 

the moment -- in either of these two categories or both 

have you established priorities insofar as what co·•eti-

tute the greatest menace to the people of New Jersey? 
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A In organized crime I would say gambling, loan sharking 

and narcotics. I'll put it in that order, although it 

would seem that loan sharking is kind of catching up on 

gambling. 

Q This is the area that I wanted to discus~,General, and 

I think these hearings can be productive. 

A I think much more subtle and much more dangerous in the 

long run are, very frankly, one is the:".in :filtration by 

organized businesses, and the next, which I feel, I say it 

is subtle, but extremely important, is the kind of cor

ruption which comes out of some entanglements between 

these people and public officials without which perhaps 

they wouldn't be able to get into these legitimate busi

nesses. 

Q Well, let me ask you this, General. I want to confine 

it to as narrow an area as I possibly can, without 

taking up too much fime. You indicated that of the three 

that gambling was first and and I think you listed 

narcotics third, I have, as a practicing attorney for many 

years, wondered, very frankly, and, perhaps, this hearing 

can be productive of this -- have you had any part in 

establishing as a policy for the various prosecutors 

designating gambling as the top priority, in each county 

insofar as law enforcement is concerned? Does that emanate 

from you office? 
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A No, because the statute says that the criminal business 

of each county is run directly by the county prosecutor 

which he is re,ponsible for. 
*' 

Q I understand that. Now, what I am saying is by the power 

of suggestion or conference based upon the experience of 

your office and that of the State Police and so fo~th, I 

want to know whether ar not if you can answer this, and 

it is possible that you can't, whether or not gambling 

has been established as the priority crime in the various 

sister counties? 

A I'd say yes. 

Q All right. Now, I would like to know, sir, if you can 

tell me why, since it' would appear to me as a liver 

and lay-person and as·a father and citizen of the commu-

nity, that the vitals of each community are being stricken 

. . ·'t~·. 
mare heavily by traffic in narcotics than by gambling a~~ 

loan sharking, why it is that this area has nat been 

listed, and I'm asking this far information purposes only, 

as a tap priority in each of the counties, as well as with 

the State Police and so forth, and I'm not talking only 

from the standpoint of organized crime, but you used the 

terminology and I agreed with it before that this was 

considered an everyday·crime, and·as well in many cases 

it is. And I agree. I was wondering why, sir, that the 

emphasis, insofar as pure enforcement, I'm not talking 
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about prosecution, but enforcement has not been concentrated 

in the area of everyday crime of narcotics, or the organized 

crime of narcotics, because I think it fits into both cate
youth 

gories, as contrasted to that of gambling, when the I of 

our state, very frankly, and I think you are aware of this, 

and the State Police are aware of this, and I am vitally 

concerned about it, and each community are presently being 

affected more adversely in narcotics and the traffic in 

narcotics and marijuana and so forth, than they are by 

gambling? 

A Well, let me say this, Senator, that I'm not sure that 

the statement that you make is one which can be backed 

up by statistics. The question of narcotics is one on 

which you get a unanimity of opinion. It is called "dirty 

business". 

Q Not according to the bills yesterday. 

A I'm talking about how to treat it. I'm talking about the 

problem of narcotics. Newspapers will continuously write 

up this kind of thing. The public generally does not buy 

this product. The public generally buys the product of 

gambling, but what the public doesn't understand is that 

the profits which come out of gambling are used by the 

organized crime racketeers to subsidize themselves to get 

into the narcotics racket. 

Q I don't want to engage in that colloquy General, insofar 
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as this is concerned, but I think that you will agree --

A Don't believe that emphasis is not put on narcotics, because 

it is. 

Q I am not saying that it is not, I'm talking about pri

orities, I'm not talking about -- nor am I criticizing, 

very frankly, law enforcement insofar as any of these 

areas are concerned, but I'm here for information. 

A I think you find better law enforcement throughout the 

State on the local level in the narcotics area than you 

do in the gambling area. 

Q I want to suggest this to you, General, that it is true, 

or I accept it is true what you say, taking into consider

ation your experience in the area, that the funds for all 

of the activities of organized crime, let's say, emanate 

from gambling. But it is further true that in every house

hold today that contains teenagers, I don't care what 

economic status they may come or what strata they may be 

in, that they must be constantly vigilant against the 

distribution in their own home of narcotics, marijuana 

of one kind or another. As a parent I know I am vitally 

concerned because I know what goes on in the Town of 

West Orange in which I live, and the surrounding munici

pa!itie&And I wonder, sir, that irrespective, because 

you have all the --and when I say "you", the attorney 

generals who have preceeded you in office felt the same 
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way, obviously, that you do, because this has been a policy 

in the State as long as I can remember, and still there 

exists the so-called seven families and three thousand 

people, and I'm not being critical of that because I know 

the problems that are encountered in law enforcement in 

that regard, but apparently the fight against gambling has 

in no way cured the situation so far as the seven families. 

We haven't been rid of them or their activities in this 

State. As a matter of fact, the traffic in narcotics 

has increased and has hit one out of every four or seven 

households -- this may not be a fact that I can produce 

proof of, but judging from statistics that I have received 

from police chiefs in the areas in which I live, I have 

been informed that at least from one out of four to one 

out of seven households have in some way have had children 

that have had experience with marijuana or continue to 

have experience with marijuana. It would appear to me, 

sir, that the entire concept or the entire philosophy 

of law enforcement insofar as the concentration on gambling 

is concerned, is somewhat archaic in view of the fact 

that there have been no great results in the elimination 

of the seven families that profit from this, while every 

household is presently subjected to the infiltration of 

narcotics. And I am wondering whether or not there could 

not be greater stress and greater emphasis placed upon 
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the discovery of the distributors, whether it's organized 

or everyday of marijuana in local municipalities than on 

gambling. 

I don't know if I've asked 

you a question or made a statement. 

A Let me respond. First, let me say this to you, so far as 

the State Police are concerned, the biggest unit we hae 

is a narcotics unit, it is bigger than the organized 

crime task force that I told you about. That is my base 

point of view. 

Secondly, you talk in terms 

of the widespread use of narcotics. N~w, of course, I 

appreciate that you are talking about marijuana --

Q Yes, sir. 

A But then you tend to emphasize, respectfully, I believe 

unduly what the answer to it may be by talking in terms 

of "Why don't you get the people who are pushing this and 

so forth and so on? Why don't you investigate there?" 

We know. These police chiefs will tell you that, especially 

the youngsters go over into New York City and buy over 

there and come back here. Our investigations do not 

indicate that there is any widespread or big-time pusher 

of marijuana in the State of New Jersey. 

Q Are we then to close our eyes to the fact that narcotics 

are coming into this State from New York and say, "Well, 

.I 
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it's coming from New York, there are no pushers in New 

Jprsoy nnd, therefore, we can't do anything about it"? 

A I didn't say that. 

Q I know you didn't say that, but I want to narrow this 

down to the specific question that I've raised, sir, 

and I'm vitally interested in stopping this traffic, and 

I say to you that there must be, and there are legal 

means by which the traveling to New York and the return 

to New Jersey with narcotics in their possession can and 

should be stopped. I am talking about local police de

partments, local prosecutors office, sheriffs office and 

so forth. Not nearly enough has been done to stop this 

traffic because everyone knows the truth of the statement 

that you just made. They go to New York and return here 

with it. Vet nothing is being done to stop that, and 

if we strike at the core of the problem, being, I think, 

that perhaps part of the problem will be eliminated. 

A I don't think that's a fair import of what is occurring. 

I think that you have got to understand that you are 

dealing here with a question of morality, you are dealing 

here with a lack of education, you are dealing here 

with a great deal of information which has been dissem

inated by some sources to the effect that the smoking 

of marijuana is, for example, not injurious, and, as 

a matter of fact, it is more injurious to drink alcohol, 
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and all of this has disseminated mostly amongst the young 

people, and when this occurs and they get this kind of 

information, they have the feeling that there is nothing 

wrong in what they are doing& Now, I don't know how it 

is possible from the way in which you are presenting it 

for law enforcement people to stand guard at the borders, 

or whatever it might be, to try to catch these people, 

and I don't know how you would do it by virtue of Mapp 

case, or even if you didn't have a Mapp case to stop 

these kids as they came back from New York to find out if 

they're bringing marijuana with them, to me it seems, and 

you've touched on it before, it seems to me that in order 

to come to grips with this problem, first and foremost 

parents have to understand that they cannot forego or 

abdicate their responsibilities, and they have to start 

this immediately in their homes. 

Q General, we are all in agreement on that. Let me ask 

you just one more question so I don't belabor this point. 

Actually, what you've said is something that we are all 

familiar with, and I agree with you, that apparently 

there isn't anything more that is going to be done about 

it than has been done. You raised as your own reason, 

as I understood you, as your own basis for support of 

the State Grand Jury, or statewide Grand Jury, the fact 

that it supersedes county lines, in effect. As a lawyer, 
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is that the basis or the sole basis of your support of the 

State Grand Jury? 

A I can't find it here now, but I believe what I said before 

that one of the important reasons other than what you've 

just mentioned was the fact that in situations where 

organized crime is concerned, I feel that there has been 

a team effort and that we are best suited here in New 

Jersey for having the investigation come out of the State 

Police, and it would be easier and more harmonious. We 

could have a better team effort if the State Police could 

deal with one office in presenting this kind of a matter 

rather than having to deal with 21 county prosecutors. 

EXAMINATION 
BY SEN. WAYNE DUMONT: 

Q General, last summer before, or just prior to the time 

when there was a question of whom to send in in respect 

to help in Newark, my recollection is that there was a 

disagreement in division of opinion as to whether the 

State Police or National Guard should go in first, is 

that correct? 

• A I really do not know what you are referring to, Senator. 

Q I thought I read a statement that you made publicly 

that you thought the National Guard should be sent in 

before the State Police rather than vice versa, that is 

for help to the local law enforcement people in Newark 
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when help was asked for because of the fact that in other 

states where the National Guard had been used, that the 

people had become acclimated to it. Did you ever make 

such a statement? 

A I don't recall ever making such a statement publicly. 

I do recall being in a conference I think in 1965 in-

volving some mayors, the State Police, the Governor, 

other officials, at which time I indicated at that time 

that in my opinion if there were a mass outbreak we would 

need mass numbers, and I did not believe that the State 

Police Force had ample numbers to cover such a situation. 

I also recall that, perhaps, more recent than that, 

perhaps in the Governor's office I may have reiterated 

something of that nature. But as of the time from 1965 

until the time it went into effect, whatever my opinion 

was, or I had stated whether it was privately or publicly, 

and I don't recall, there was a plan of operation, and 

this had nothing to do with anything which occurred. 

Q Was there a plan of operation by, say, the 13th of July 

or thereabouts, 196?? 

A Yes. 

Q What was that plan, who was to go in first? 

A The State Police. 

Q And was that your plan? I mean was that your own personal 

position? 

•I 
i 
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A As to July 13th? Yes. As a matter of fact, as of three 

and four months prior thereto even. There was a meeting 

prior thereto which also was a meeting about ~ich you 

might have information, I don't know, where Gen. Cantwell 

indicated that since the procedure had been worked out, 

that was the procedure which he would tend to follow and 

I went along with him. 
_, 

Q Well, was it at his recommendation that the State Police 

should go in first, or yours? Or who made the recommenda-

tion? 

A The recommendation was worked out on the basis of consul-

tation with':the Governor, Colonel of the State P0 lice and 

myself. There are many things where I dissent at the 

very beginning, Senator, and I tried to be reasonable when 

others indicate that they know more about the subject than 

I, I accede. 

Q Your original position had been that the National Guard 

should preceed the State Police, is that right? 

A My original position was that -- it would have to be y.es, 

based upon the fact that I thought if there was a major 

outbreak there would not be sufficient numbers of State 

P·olice available. 

Q Although you were aware of the fact that as of that time, 

of course, the National Guard had not had any training 

in civil disturbance? 
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A I was not aware of it at that time. When I expressed my 

opinion I was made aware of that. 

Q How many troopers were assigned to Newark and Plainfieid 

last year? 

A My recolleption, somewhere between six end seven hundred 

in toto. 

Q About half the force? 

A That would be a half, or more. 

Q Vou indicated that you are in favor of a law enforcement 

agency in New Jersey, I think you said in every state. 

Do you have ~ny specific thoughts as to the composition 

of the agency? How many people should be on it? Whether 
not? 

it should be salaried or I Whether they should be lay 

people outside of government. and what kind of staff it 

should have? 

A Vee, I do. It is mv opinion that there should be repre-

eentatives of both the Senate and the Assembly, that 

there should be State ~abinet officers that are con-

earned through the areas of police on through to the 

other end of the scale, parole and probation, and that 

there should be public members on thatBoard who would 

have expertise in these various fields and in general 

citizen a. 

Q Well, are you talking then about an agency as large as 

the Governor's Council Against Crime, or some agency that 

.. ' 
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could operate much more rapidly, perhaps, and, perhaps, 

much more efficiently because of the smaller size? 

rapidly . .. 
is B size th~t gets too gruat ~nd 2 size th2t gets too 

small. But I believe whether it operates rapidly and 

efficiently depends much more upon the executive director 

and the staff than on the size of the agency. I had 

originally proposed a council of about 21 people for a 

council of which I had in mind. 

Q How many are on the Governor's Council? 

A Thirty. 

Q Thirty? 

A Give or take one or two, I don't recall at the moment. 

EXAMINATION 
BY SENATOR WOODCOCK: 

Q General, with respect to the Grand Jury that you were 

speaking of before, you indicated that it would be 

mainly, as I understand it, one of limited jurisdiction, 

the State Grand Jury? 

A No, it wouldn't have limited jurisdiction, Senator, 

but it would be oriented to handle organized crime 

problems. In a situation of that kind it would be up to 

the assignment judge in charge to determine whether or not 

on good cause shown he would convene such a Grand Jury. 
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In other words, there is no Carte Blanche to the calling 

of such a Grand Jury. We'd have to show the assignment 

judge why a particular county Grand Jury couldn't handle 

the situation. And as I indicated, it is oriented towards 

the situation that I mentioned of organized crime which 

would be crossing many county lines. 

0. Well, General, ti-Jls Grand Jury would only be summoned 

when an assignment judge thought it proper? 

A Ves, on good cause shown to him. 

0. And it would not be a sitting Grand Jury at a regular 

term to take on these specific matters of organized crime 

as they determine it? 

A No. 

Q And would it be also called into being to handle the 

everyday crimes? 

A In my idea of the thing, no. 

0. But certainly in the area --
I or 

A Possibly it could be if the assignment judge, if/some 

other attorney general might change my mind in a par-

ticular case and presented it to the assignment judge, 

it would be up to him to determine. 

Q And certainly in the area of the civil disorders? 

A Ves. 

Q Well, General, wouldn't you think that it would be better 

to establish, if we were going to establish a State Grand 

.. 
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Jury, that it be a sitting body as the Grand Juries within 

the counties now sit by term? 

A Perhaps, Senator, but I don't know how practical that 

would be under the given circumstances, especially when 

the jury would be convened only on a special cause. We 

asked, when an inquiry was made of a Superior Court assign

ment judge. It would be kind of sitting in limbo, to say. 

Q True, except that a Grand Jury sitting in a county now, 

may of its own volition undertake an investigation that 

it sees having some significance. 

A Well, that's true, but they have regular business, so to 

say, so they're operating 2t all times, whereas this 

State Grand Jury is sort of a superstructure which has 

extraordinary kind of business. 

Q But it was my understanding, and correct me if I'm wrong, 

that when we were talking, or rather you were discussing 

the State Grand Jury and the State Police and the Attorney 

General's office sort of working in conjunction to make 

a fight against the organized crime in the State of New 

Jersey, that it would seem to me that it would follow 

that if that were to happen, this Grand Jury, you'd have 

a lot of business to do. 

A Well, it's true, they could have a lot of business. The 

results of that business might be a presentment rather 

than an indictment, as occurs many times with county Grand 
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Juries. It may very well be that if such legislatir~ were 

adopted, there might be immediate steps to convene a Grand 

Jury, and it might very WP~l be that that Gr:::nd Jury might 

remain in existence for a long period of time before the 

matters before it are resolved either by way of indictment 

or presentment. So, I think, Senator, although we may be 

saying different things, it might amount to the same thing 

once it got started, that is a question whether or not 

it should be on call for an individual instance or whether 

or not it should be sitting at all times. 

Q Well, it was my impression from your discussion earlier 

today, for instance, the subject of loan sharking, which 

does not recognize a territorial boundary, it goes from 

Hudson County to Essex, Bergen and throughout the north

east, and probably down into the southern part of the 

State. This has a movement that would require this kind 

of Grend Jury rather than the Grand Jury located in 

Hackensack, and so that I think if we are going to attack 

the problem of loan sharking, wouldn't it be better to 

have this Grand Jury sitting at all times to handle that 

problem along with the gambling, along with every other 

problem of this type, the type that moves? 

A As I say, it may turn out that way because if the legis

lation is passed, and I'm advised by the Colonel that he 

is ready to move in certain area, whether it be for 
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indictment or presentment, we would then try to show a 

Superior Court judge, if we have good cause, and he would 

convene that jury and it would stay in existence as long as 

necessary for this particular problem • 

Q Just one other question, General, with respect to narcotics, 

you indicated there was traffic out of New York and into 

New Jersey with respect to marijuana, and I got the im

pression that you almost thought that fight was one that 

had to be lost because of the interstate complexion. 

A No, sir, I hope I didn't leave that impression. I was 

merely saying that I didn't t~ink that one could say that 

we were not emphasizing the narcotics problem in New Jersey 

because we weren't arresting the big pushers of New Jersey. 

I was indicating that our evidence, our investigations 

don't indicate that there is e:vidence of big time opera

tors in New Jersey pushing either marijuana or the hard 

stuff, that New York is the market place for this. 

Q Does your investigation indicate the best method of 

attacking the problem of marijuana and narcotics in New 

Jersey? 

A It is my opinion that the problem must be met on an educa

tion level as well as on the enforcement level, as well 

as on the treatment level, and I think these things are 

necessary. 
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EXAMINATION 
BY SENATOR LYNCH: 

Q General, the witness immunity bill you referred to here 

before, I believe was introduced in both Houses of Legis- .. 
lature yesterday. Do any other states have a similar type 

legislation? 

A Yes. 

Q Can you tell me what states they are? 

A Well, Illinois has it, Maine has it, I believe Rhode Island 

has it -- I can get the list of the states for you, if 

you want it. 

Q It is not necessary. 

A I know those particularly, I've spoken to the various 

attorneysgeneral of those states. 

Q Has this type legislation ever been tested in court? 

A Oh, yes. 

Q The United States Supreme Court? 

A Yes. 

Q What would happen to an individual who was given immunity 

and testifies and his testimony reveals he may be guilty 

of a federal offense? Would that immunity go so far as 

to protect him with the federal offense too? 

A Murphy against the Water Front Commission says yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: Only if, of 

course, it is the same subject matter in the same area. 
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ATTY. GEN. SILLS: That's 

right. I assume that was included in the Senator's 

question. The Senator is one of the able lawyers of the 

Bar of New Jersey. 

EXAMINATION 
BV SEN. THOMAS: 

Q General, with respect to this Stateg .' Grand Jury concept, 

who would try the cases, what agency would try the cases 

in which indictments were made? 

A I'm sorry, I didn •t get the first part of the question. 

Q With respect to the State Grand Jury concept, what 

agency would try the cases in which indictments were 

handed down? 

A The Attorney General's office .• 

Q Would the attorney general then have statewide jurisdic-

tion to try a case in any county as to avoid this ques-

tion of jurisdiction or venue? 

A Ves. 

Q What assignment judge would convene the State Grand Jury? 

A One appointed by the Chief Justice. 

Q So there would be just a single assignment judge that 

had that responsibility? 

A No, I think he would probably give a few of them that 

responsibility, from what I understand in conversation 

with him: 



144 

Q What would be the basis for picking one or two, as opposed 

to having the assignment in any county or venue being able 

to convene this State Grand Jury? 

A A matter of uniformity and orientation and a knowledge of 

the subject matter which might make it easier for all 

concerned. 

Q With respect to narcotics there are two bills, there is 

a bill in the Senate and one in the Assembly that deal 

with a means of civil commitment. Do you favor this kind 

of approach to the narcotics problem? 

A I favor the civil commitment approach. I haven't studied 

those bills carefully yet, I'm not sure what's contained 

in it. 

Q I'm not trying to commit you to the bills, just to the 

philosophy. 

A I do favor a civil commitment approach. 

Q With respect to labor unions, and I don't know whether 

this would fall into the category that you communicated 

before that you would rather talk to us in executive 

session, but can you tell us to what extent labor unions 

in this state may have been infiltrAted by organized 

crime? 

A I'll only say in a general way that there has been an 

infiltration on both the employer and the employee side. 

Q Is any action being taken in this particular area to 
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combat this infiltration? 

A Yes .. 

Q Can you tell us what that is? 

A These matters are under investigation by the State Police. 

There may be other local police forces as well, but at 

least from our level they are under investigation by the 

State Police. 

EXAMINATION 
BY ASSEMBLYMAN GAVAN: 

Q General, in answer to a previous question you indicated 

that the syndicate from its profits in gambling gets into 

narcotics and other matters. When we speak of gambling, 

are we speaking of gambling in the broad sense, or do 

we restrict it mainly to off-track betting and numbers 

or policy? 
Assemblyman. 

A All kinds of betting,/ off-track, racing, the 

sports other than racing constitute a large area of 

which there is betting, football, baseball, basketball. 

It used to be in fights, but I'm not quite sure whether 

it is anymore. A fellow used to write "Don't bet on 

fights" in the Old World Telegram, and since he has 

deceased, and perhaps, the public is now back to betting 

on fights, I don't know. But I don't think it is as 

big a sport as it used to be. 

Q But gambling you indicate is the profitable venture of 
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the syndicate? 

A Very profitable. Again, it is a numbers game, but estimates 

that you read say that the national gross product runs 

anything from nine billion to fifty billion. 

Q In light of that, and I'm thinking now of some editorials 

that I've read in some newspapers, I'm wondering whether 

or not, and I don't know whether you want to answer this, 

whether or not in your opinion if your package of bills 

contained a bill which permitted the people of this State 

to vote on a referendum to legalize off-track betting or 

numbers, whether this would tend to take the profit from 

the syndicate, and at the same time alleviate the law 

enforcement problem? 

A It is not an easy question, to be frank with you, and I 

have thought about it before, Senator, and I do have 

some views with respect to them. However, this is one 

of the areas into which our Council Against Crime is 

delving at this particular time. They are looking into 

whether or not gambling should be legalized, how they 

believe the narcotic addicts should be treated, and 

also what to do with respect to alcoholics, and this 

is all on recommendation to the President's Crime Com

mission reports. I hesitate, I have hesitated to make 

any views known publicly because I'm serving as chairman 

of this commission. I would like to get an opinion from 
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members of this commission without my saying publicly what 

I believe, but I have said publicly that I believe that 

this is a question with which we must come to grips. On 

the one hand it is easy to say and, perhaps, can be said 

that like with alcohol, if you legitimatize it, you take 

it out of the field of being a crime, and, therefore, 

you may be taking away the profit of the organized crime 

people. On the other hand, there are those that say it 

might not be feasible in a country such as ours, to the 

extent that it has been in New Zealand, and to some ex-

tent in England, that a great deal of the gambling in 

this country is done on credit, and a state regulated 

agency would not operate on cTedit. Therefore, there 

would still be this great arEa open. And then again, 

there is the saying that if there is enough water around, 

too many people may drink it. Which means that there 

are some people today who don't gamble because it's 

illegal, they're hard to find, I think, and that this 

might lead them to do gambling which otherwise they would 

not do. 

EXAMINATION 
BY ASSEMBLEMAN OWENS: 

Q General Sills, of course, you are familiar with the 

system whereby our prosecutors are appointed throughout 

the State of New Jersey , Something thdiJt d:isturbs 
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me to a degree is that men are appointed as prose

cutors and then they are permitted to carry .. 

on their law practice. Do you, in your opinion 

feel as though if the prosecutors were compelled to 

give up their law practice, that this would strengthen 

law enforcement in these particular areas? 

A Yes. 

Q I wonder if you have any comment in general on this? 

A The answer to the question is yes. 

MR. LUMBARD: Do you have 

the power to so state or enforce? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No. 

MR. LUMBARD: Do you think 

you should be given that power? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: No, I 

think that's a matter for the Legislature. I don't 

think it should be a matter of discretion with an 

attorney general. I think the determination should be 

made as to whether a law enforcement officer of this 

type should be full time or not full time. 

MR. LUMBARD: Do you recom

mend a statute that would so state? 
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ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I am in 

favor of full time prosecutors. 

MR. LUMBARD: And you believe 

to ma~e it effective it would have to be done by statute? 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: Yes. 

Of course, I might point out that commensurate with that, 

you would have to increase the salaries of these men, 

which might increase mine too. 

CONTINUATION BY MR. OWENS: 

Q Attorney General Sills, earlier I believe you stated that 

the Essex County prosecutor's office was to investigate 

the charges or the feeling of corruption in New York 

as outlined in the Report for Action. I am very much 

concerned about these charges, and that an early resolu-

tion, or that an early report come forth. I think you 

would agree and the Mayor of Newark I think agrees and 

has so indicated that he would like this investigation 

and as quickly as possiblee Vet, I'm struck when I read 

at page 141 of the same report in the section dealing 

with the deaths in Newark during the last riot, that 

these words "The location of death, the number of wounded, 

the manner in which the wounds were inflicted, all 

raised grave doubts about the circumstances undert~hich 
many of these people died. Prosecutor Byrne Lordi's 

predecessor, testified that his office was inquiring into 
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each of the deaths." and they go on, "As of January 18, 

1968, these investigations were still pending." 

Now, to the best of my know

ledge these investigations are still pending. And it 

will not be too long before a year will have passed. 

Now, this same office is undertaking, as I see it, two 

very, very crucial investigations. Have you discussed 

with Mr. Lordi, first of all, the riot death investiga

tions and when they might be completed, and is there any 

projection as to how long it might take them to complete 

the investigation for corruption? 

A Well, first of all let me say I think that you may not 

be aware that all of these cases, although you may call 

it investigation, and it may still be considered inves

tigation, have been presented to a Grand Jury in Essex 

County, and they have been considering the deaths about 

which you are talking. So, if you are thinking of an 

invEstigation in terms of field investigation and not 

presenting to a Grand Jury, then that's not so. These 

matters have been presented to a Grand Jury in Essex 

County. Just when the Grand Jury will act upon it, I 

don't know, I don't heve the power to tell the Grand 

Jury when they should act or when they should make 

known their findings, that's within the jurisdiction 
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of the court itself and the prosecutor who is presenting 

the case. 

Insofar as the other allega

tions, that of alleged corrupt practices in Newark, I 

believe that the report to which you refer came out in 

February, and I believe that there was an announcement 

in the newspaper -- well, when the Governor came back 

after his difficulty, physical difficulties, I believe it 

was in -- I guess the end of February or early in March 

when the announcement was made that the Prosecutor 

Lordi would handle the investigation. And then again, 

you've got to have a background that during Prosecutor 

By~~e'stenure in office there were five Grand Jury inves• 

tigations on the same subject, none of which led -- I 

think one of them may have led to an indictment and a 

conviction in one case, which didn't clear up many 

things, if they were there. But, with all of this I 

think that you can understand that you can't have the report 

in February and the prosecuting of the case in March 

and have an answer by this time. 

Q I'm not suggesting that at all. What I'm concerned with 

-- perhaps I'd better ask another question first. 

If I understand you cor

rectly then, since the February date mentioned in the 
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report and today, may I assume then that the investigations 

that they speak of that were then not completed, have 

since been completed? 

A They have been presented to a Grand Jury. 

Q That's what I mean. So in the intervening time --

A I think they were being presented to the Grand Jury in 

January while this report was 'Jeing written. You see, 

I think they probably finished the testimony here in 

November or December, and while they were drawing the 

report as of, you know, as of the previous date, the 

prosecutor had been moving forward. 

MR. LUMBARD: One last ques

tion. You mentioned before that there was a major or

ganized crime problem with the families moving or infil

trating into legitimate business. You do not mention 

infiltration into the legitimate trade union movement. 

However, is that a problem as well? 

A Yes. I thought I answered Assembleman Thomas over there 

when I said it was both on an employer and employee 

basis. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: I think at 

this time, Attorney General, we appreciate your appear

ance here and I think, as has been indicated by the 

members of the Committee, that we will try and work out 
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a schedule to ask you back for both an executive session and, 

perhaps, some more open testimony, and we will be in contact 

and try to work out a convenient schedule. 

ATTY. GEN. SILLS: I would just 

like to say this, Mr. President, that on the original quetion 

which was asked of me of what our plans were, that I've given 

you about fifteen percent of what I intended to, because 

there are many other things about which I can talk and 

which I have not had the opportunity to discuss, and I 

understand the reasons why, but I just want you to know that 

there is much more th8n just the question of witness immu

nity and wire tapping and loan sharking. I didn't even 

talk about loan sharking legislation, but there are 

other things about which we could talk. And may I, if I 

can, suggest, if possible, that if you would give me, 

perhaps, a list of the questions in advance, that I might 

be in a better position to bring forth statistics or 

give you information on paper which would not call for 

the necessity of my reciting statistics to you in order 

to show you what our workload is, for example? 

MR. LUMBARD: General, it 

is like you said, it is a question of staff. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Thank you 

very much. We will recess now for fifteen minutese 
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Following the recess, Colonel Kelly, I will ask you to 

speak. 

(At which time a fifteen min-

ute recess was taken.) 

SEN. FORSYTHE: The hearing 

will be back in order, please. 

Colonel, would you identify 

yourself and then we can swear you in? 

COL. KELLY: I am Col. David 

Kelly and I am superintendent of the New Jersey State 

Police. 

C 0 L 0 N E L D A V I D KELLY, was sworn by Senator 

Forsythe and testified as follows: 

EXAMINATION 
BY MR. LUMBARD: 

Q Colonel, how long have you been superintendent of the 

New Jersey State Police? 

A Since January, 1965. 

Q For how long had you been with the New Jersey State 
• 

Police in any capacity? 

A I enlisted in the State Police in April, 1946. 

Q What are the major crime problems confronting New Jersey 

in your opinion? 

A I probably have to reiterate what the Attorney General 
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just said in terms of crime problems. If you are talking 

about syndicated crime, you are talking about narcotics 

and shylocking. 

Q You would start with organized crime? 

A Primarily, yes, I would. 

Q You consider that to be the single must"important or dif-

ficult crime problem now confronting New Jersey? 

A Because of its influence in other areas. 

Q Would you spell that out, please? 

A I would consider that organized crime would be the prime 

consideration right now because of its influence or their 

influence in ot' er areas of the state. 

Q Could you tell us in what respect? 

A In respect to narcotics for 6ne. Also in•respect to 

compl acen,cy, a.nd possibly apathy, on the part of all 

concerned regarding gambling, the effect that gambling 

would and does:have. We talk about ga'+lpling on the 

streets, we talk about gambling in the cities, but 
' ' ' • ~ I. ' 

' little is said about gambling in industry and the 
·---·-·· ,, 

protectiveness of gambling with{n industry. We've 

had people, undercover peopie/ ·in· in-d'us~ri 1Al· .. shdps 

I ·person-

. 
'' 
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ally made a request to a friend to see if we could get an 

undercover man into an industrial area plant. This mere 

approach shook him because of problems he may have had 

or may have with the union. And this is why I say 

gambling, organized crime affects many areas. 

Wo 2ro now tolking about the working 

people, L:.JB are talking about unions. 

Q You mean th2t the unions obstructed your investigation of 

gambling? 

A I didn't say that. I said I made an approach to the plant 

manager but he was afraid to have an undercover man in 

this plant because of repercussions by the union if we 

did any raiding or if we upset what was going on in this 

plant. 

Q Because the union wanted gambling to continue? 

A I didn't say that eithsr. I don't know whether the union 

wanted it to continue or not, but he said he was afraid 

of repercussions, afraid of a possible strike or afraid 

of internal disorder that could be caused by the union 

if we were to conduct a raid there. 

Q Or ·~~ n2ny occasiJns have you had any such situations? 

A Three. 

Q Are you continuing your efforts in plants or have you 

stopped because of what the unions may say? 

.. 
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A I just wanted to create the whole picture for you. There 

are people involved other than the people on the streets 

and in the cities and we looked into this and we talked 

to our people that had been in plants, and we talked 

about the protectiveness of a plant. The system is so 

designed within a plant, that if you are hired and you 

want to place a bet, you can only place it in the area 

that you work. If you go to the next area, they say, 

"Look, go back and place your bets elsewhere." This 

is what we ·call protectiveness. 

First, we can't get a job, 

or if we do get a job, you have to know the individual 

that you are betting with in your area 

and if we are talking about plants, plants of 

any size could be areas of thousands and thousands of 

dollars a day in betting, lottery, horses. If you try 

to find out how the slips come out,they will come out 

at a different time. I would say that if we 

looked at the hard working people, they think that 

there is nothing wrong with this, "We are having a 

little pleasure, $2, 50~ on a lottery," but little do 

they realize that this $2 goes elsewhere and affects 
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the whole State and the whole country. 

Q Have you been able to trace the implant gambling of the nature 

that you have discussed to the families that the Attorney 

General said operated in one or another degree in New 

Jersey? 

A If I could weigh that question and possibly talk to you 

in executive session, I could probably answer that. 

Q In executive session? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you make the same offer to the Committee that the 

Attorney General did about talking more openly about 

organized crime in executive session? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Well, without getting into the areas, Colonel, where you 

might feel would be a problem to discuss in public some 

aspect of details, could you continue for us why you 

feel that organized crime is a problem and you have 

problems dealing with it? 

A First, let me go back for a bit, if I may, and give you 

the organizational structure that we have, and why we 

reorganized, and this will probably give you some of the 

problems that we encountered 

and there are forty 

We have three basic troops 

State Police stations that 
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operate throughout the State, each with the full res-

,ponsibility of crime, general police and traffic. A 

troop headquarters controls 13 stations. The troop 

headquarters has the responsibility of seeing that 

these stations function properly. But we found that 

there were blanks, there were voids between State 

Police, local police, county police. Beople were 

taking_ advantage of these voids by operating in 

these areas. As such, we reovganized and the station 

has the responsibility of the everyday crime, the 

general crime, whatever would come up. We organized 

a crime task force that would fill the void and 

operate within municipalities and counties, where 

these voids existed. The primary responsibility of 

the crime task force is to obtain information and 

do such things as is required to combat organized 

crime. 

We think that the organized 

crime problem here today is the great influence 

throughout the State. We can get great co-operation 

from each and every police department if we are 

talking about murders. Band E's, narcotics and 

rapes. But as soon as we say gambling, there is a 

kind of 
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draw-off attitude. The dramatic things we can get, as we 

talked about here before, and much emphasis is placed 

on narcotics, and rightfully so. 

Q Do you find that generally you do not get co-operation 

fron the local police with regard to any of the organized 

crime areas, or is it just gambling? 

A Well, there are areas where local police departments 

would be totally ignorant of such operations. They would 

be totally ignorant that such a condition did exist. 

Some of the people in organized crime live in one area 

but operate in another area. In the area where he lives, 

he's probably the nicest neighbor that you ever met •. He has a 

fine family, contributes to the church, but his opera-

tion is not in the neighborhood that he resides. Conse

quently, the people in the area of operation do not 

know this man and the local police department sometimes 

could not tie these things together. This is why we 

have organized this task force. Our job is to 

inform the local 

poliss departments, and we have established this intelli

gence unit and we have profiles on sixteen or seventeen 

of the major people in this State. 

Q Sixteen or seventeen? 

A Yes, lengthy profiles. 



161 

Q How does that figure relate to the 3,000 the General dis-

cussed? 

A We are talking about some of the members and lesser mem

bers who fit into this program~ 

Q Would you say, therefore, you haue in your view now 16 or 

17 major targets in the State at this time? 

A We have 16 or 1? individuals that we consider prime tar-

gets. 

Q In organized crime? 

A Right. 

Q Currently active? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, of that group has your ~rganization ever made a 

case against any of them? 

A We are working on some of these. 

Q I mean historically? 

A Again, I will talk to you in executive session. 

Q Well, if you've convicted them, it is a fact. 

A We haven't convicted. 

Q Have cases been made by municipal police departments 

or local law enforcement against these people? 

A I'm sorry? 

Q Have cases been made by municipal police departments, 

to your knowledge, against these people? 
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A Yes sir. 

Q Do you find that the municipal police departments 

in this State are able to cope with organized crime 

in their jurisdiction? 

A Well, again, this is generalization. A number of 

police departments can't because of their size, 

and capacity of the police department, they can't. 

Q They what? 

A Some of them can't. 

Q Do they in fact? 

A As best we know, they do. Again, as I say, it may 

be lack of criminal intelligence on the part of the 

local police department in that they just don't 

know who are operating. They may know the local 

bookie, which is a constant problem for them, but 

they really don't know where the money is going. 

Q They don't know the higher-ups? 

A They just don't know. Sometimes we don't know. 

We assume it is going to certain places, but we 

have no proof as to where. 

Q Well, treA, I gather it is your testimony that 

you have felt it necessary to go to a statewide 

operation even 
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within the State Police alone, so far as organi:z.ta: crime 
•' '-

is concerned? 

A Right, sir, because of the concentration. We are concen-

trating on this particular group. 

Q Yes, concentration on manpower, better co-ordination and 

collection of intelligence. Don't these reasons also 

apply within the county, say, within the police depart-

ments of a county, if they have. the same function? 

A I missed your point. 

Q If between troops of the State Police, one entity, you 

have some loss of effectiveness against organized crime 

in terms of intelligence, concentration of efforts, 

specialist assignments or whatever, wouldn't those sit-

uations also apply to police departments within the 

county? 

A Yes. I said that. 

Q Now, has your organization participated in any kind of 

plan or made any recommendations with regard to the 

fragmentation of local police departments in New Jersey? 

A I know what you are talking about. I know your 

theory on fragmentation. In terms of assistance to 

local police departments, there is no question, tech-

nical assistance, a system ·.of intelligence, 

a system of raids, yes; we have this. 



164 

Now, if you are talking about 

bodies and technical services, one police department has 

two men, the next one has four, the next one has twenty, and 

this is the fragmentation that you are talking about. I 

believe this takes a kind of long look into terms of 

assistance and the State should give assistance in 

technical assistance in polygraphs. T:hese types of 

service should be regionalizl?((l. Maybe four or 

five towns should get together for services. We agree on 

this, but for manpower, I don't know whether I could justi-

fiably say yes or no to thiL~ You ~ave to under-

stand the geographies of the State, the social problems 

of the State. The southern part of the State is not as 

concerned with organized crime as Essex or Hudson County. 

Q Let me ask you directly, your organization works every

day with the municipality police, receives information 

from them, it gives information to them, exchanges ser

vices, it is deeply involved in one way or another 

working with the local police departments. 

Has the New Jersey State 

Police Department, as a result of this involvement, 

come to any conclusions that it should or should not have so 

many ~Qlice departments in the State of New Jersey, for 

example the General said there are over 400, or whatever 



165 

the figure is? 

A Let me first tell you of our participation; where th~; 

State Police fits into the state's structure. 

Q I understand that. Can you just say to me, "Has the 

department taken a position as to whether there is ex-

cessive fragmentation on a municipal police level or 

not?" 

A I don't know, I have never made that study. I'd have 

to look a little bit deeper into this. 

Q Whether or not the department has, what is your opinion? 

A As far as my opinion, let me give you our policy, and 

our policy is in this regard, we have three areas of 
in 

responsibility~the State Police: Full, partial and 

co-operative. 

The area of 

full responsibility is where there is no police depart-

ment or the police department is such that it is un-

organized . 

The partial is where there 

is a partial police department or a part-time police 

department or two or three policemen, and we then have 

partial responsibility in terms oftraffic 

control, investigation of major crimes, co-operation 

with the prosecutor, etcetera. 
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And the co-operative area 

is where they are self-sustaining, self-supporting, and 

we co-operate at their request. 

Now, we are talking about a 

police department that has all of the internal functions, 

as detectives and radio and everything. Now, where we 

cut this off, and how we cut this off, I'm not quite 

qualified to say. I have given it some thought in terms 

of "Should there be regionalization for three or four 

municipalities?". Well, they may have kind of local 

political problems and not be in accord with each other. 

Q Let me be very clear, we are not here talking about 

whether there are or not political problems, because 

clearly there would be political problems in consoli

dating police departments. Rather we are seeking 

your technical opinion as an expert policeman asto 

whether this would or would not be a desirable course. 

A If you're asking me about regionalization, I'm in accord 

with regionalization 100% for the services that they 

can supply to one another in court. 

Q Do you think they would best be organized on a county 

basis? 

A No, I don't think so. I think that the county lines 

have long gone or have been since gone in terms of 
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police problems 

Q How would you divide the zones or districts that would be 

most efficient to municipal police departments? 

A Well, I just can't tell you. If you asked me to study it 

and make a survey of it, I would gladly have this done. 

Q All right. If you don't know, you don't know. 

A Maybe we do,but we just are not fortified with enough 

information. You are asking me if we should have region~l-

ization. I said yes in terms of services we should. 

In terms of people, I don't know. 

Q You were going on about organized crime before when we 

got into fragmentation and its impact. You mentioned 

loan sharking, although you didn't discuss it in any de-

tail. Can you say a little more to the Committee about 

what you had in mind? 

A Well, with regard to the loan sharking, it is such an 

ambiguous thing, the only time we receive a. complaint 
victim has 

loan sharking is when the/ been kicked around or beat up 

for failure to pay, and then he's afraid to be kicked 

around or beat up again. Generally we don't get the 

information from this individual because of f·ear· or 

intimidation@ Our laws are such that we need corrective 

laws in terms of loan sharking, ·in terms of usury . 
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~nd I understand that there is legislation. 

Q Your problem is to get evidence? 

A Yes. We don't know who has borrowed from whom~ We 

will have allegations, but they are not provable 

in court. 

Q Well, let's talk about two specific ways of getting 

evidence that might assist them. One would be immunity, 

is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And the other would be electronic eavesdropping, is that 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you have a recommendation or an opinion regarding 

either? 

A Both. 

Q What is it? 

A I'm for eavesdropping, I'm for electronic devices and 

I'm for witness immunity. 

Q Could you spell out to the Committee why you think New 

Jersey should have an electronic eavesdropping statute? 

A Well, I want to qualify this. I am all for the rights 

of individuals, the rights of the people . to be pro-

tected,. EaV3sdropping devices would have to be 
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used with the'judicial restraints. 

I think that because of the times and the trend and the 

complexities of our investigations, we have to have 

these devices either for investigative purposes or eviden

tial purposes, and even if it is not evidential, it is at 

least investigative, and again I'm concerned with the 

rights of individuals, and I think there should be the 

proper restraints and restrictions on thiE., But it is an 

absolute necessity for us to function, because practically 

everything that is done now in terms of interstate, intra

state, is by wires or communications, and we have to be 

as tricky as the people that are tricking us. That's 

the only way ' I can explain it to you. 

Q Would it be fair to say, Colonel, that in your opinion 

it is absolutely essential to have electronic eaves

dropping to obtain evidence if there is to be any pre

tense of the successful fight against organized crime? 

A I would haveto say yes. It is a necessity right now. 

Whether it would be an absolute necessity, I don't know, 

but I know that it is a necessity, and I'm speaking for 

my own organization and the problems that we do _have. 

Q What kind of laboratory services do you provide to the 

local police departments? 

A Well, the Attorney General told. you some of the 
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services that we have, and we provide all of the services 

to all of the police departments that want to use them. 

Some of the major cities may use a commercial service4 

We provide all of the services, technical, toxicolo

gical and other services that would be required. 

Q I understand that Newark and others, for example, hire 

private laboratories and persons who are not under the 

discipline of civil service or government employment 

who are entrusted with very valuable evidence. Do you 

think that's a good practice? 

A I don't know if it's a good practice or not, but I surely 

wouldn't recommend it. 

Q Why is it that the State Police laboratory, which is open 

to all comers, is not utilized by these local communities 

for something that I think we could agree is very signif

icant, and why do the taxpayers go out and buy the ser

vices of these other laboratories at an extra cost? 

A Well, the answer, of course, is that that we are taxed 

right up to our ears with a workload, in terms of an 

examination by the municipalities. One of the biggest 

problems that we encounter, and I don't know whether 

it's been said before or not, we have six chemists, and 

about 40% of their time is spent in court. 

. 



171 

Somebody in their legLsl.ati~.e wisdom· or judicial . ·· 

wisdom should give some cognizance to this in terms 

of time spent in cou:r;t. If by stipulation so.me. qf 
'i 

this time could be saved, everyone concerned would 

benefit greatly. 40% of the time of the chemists 

are spent in court. 
,1 . . . 

Q Well, Colonel, on the other hand, though if they have to 

be in court and you can't do anything about it, and the 

local communities can't get the services they need from 

you folks, and they thus have to hire these commercial 
·• 
·~ laboratories, you are in something of a very bad dilemma. 

A We are talking manpower now. 

Q I'm only addressing myself to the fact that apparently 

you have a laboratory which has facilities but which cannot 

meet the need and the community doesn't use it. 

A One,,thingwe'don•.t·~now, Mr. Lumbard, is this. We don't 

know how many people have not sent things in, we do know 

what they send to us, we don't know where else they send 

them. But we have a manpower problem in terms of getting 

chemists for the price that the State will pay chemists. 

We have six chemists now and we are having a time trying 

to keep these people because of the economics of the 

thing. 
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Again, if we have to, we have 

a fine building, we have a fine laboratory, but we have to 

expand it, and we talk about another laboratory-~:,_,~ - . 

elsewhere in the State. 

Q Should there? 

A No, I feel it should be here. We have the facilities, 

let's expand the facilities, and I'm against spreading 

out manpower. We know that we are going to have 50% of 

the people working in the laboratory, and if we decen

tralize, four people here and four people here, 'JJe don't 

know how many people will be in the laboratory. 

Q I am only reporting to you that various police chiefs have 

told me that they find the service fine when they get it, 

but it is so slow that it is in effect unavailable to 

them, and this would be a problem. 

A It is just the manpower, it just isn't fair. 

Q There's always a reason, but the end result is that it 

isn't fair. 

A One of the things to recognize is now that we've become 

technical and more scientific, more police departments 

and policemen are bringing in !Vidence because 

of court con-

ditions and, of course, our workload has gone up and we 

are jus over-:- taxed and l.,ack manpower. 
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Q And it will continue. 

A Yes, sir, it will probably get worse. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: I think we 

can now move to members of the Committee. 

EXAMINATION 
BV SEN. FORSYTHE: 

Q Colonel, I would like to come back to the question that 

the General referred, I should refer to you getting to 

this manpower, and specifically with the crime report. 

I understand you have problems in hiring chemists. Do 

you have problems in staff in terms of this crime report 

problem? 

A In terms of the crime reportr I probably should qualify 

this for you, Senator, to explain what was originally 

said. The year that we were in existence ended in 

January or December 31st. We have six men who do nothing, 

but go around to municipalities instructing 

them how to make out this form or correcting it.· 

The majority send 

them in monthly, others send them in quarterly, the law 

requires quarterly. Most of them send them in by the 

month. We have to correct thBm. ·The y£mrly report 

is in. We will h've.all the 

statistics that we need by April 1st, but we are 
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talking August the 1st where a program, a document like 

this, that would be meaningful. For example, it is not 

a question just saying Jersey City had 3,400 some assaults. 

We have to explain u1:1at Jersey City is like. It is an in-

dust rial town, 400 people will move in or out, and 

we have to give a pictorial background of this town so 

that we do have a proper view as is required for the sea-

sonal type thing. This is what we are talking about if 

we are going to give a good, valid evaluation of the 

statistics that they report. We feel that we have the 

best reporting system in the country, and this has been 

told to us by the F.B.I., simply because we have six men 

who go around to the municipalities 

developing uniformity. This is what we 

have, we do not have any proul m.1 getting them, we are 

using troopers. 

Q True, I do +.hink your evaluation, and this is all very 

important, but don't you believe that it also would be 

import2nt to gs~ this raw figure released as early as 

possible in terms of helping enlighten the people as 

to the problem? 

A We can give the Attorney General the raw figure April the 

1st. · · • We are st~ll mov~ng to mun~cipalities 

correcting 
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reports that have been submitted, and it is as simple as 

that. 

EXAMINATION 
BY SEN. WAYNE DUMONT, JR.: 

Q Colonel Kelly, is it true that you have 1,295 troopers 

now or 1,248? 
number. 

A It is 1,295. We .are· authorized that/ , but our present 

strength is 1,248. We have 47, 48 vacancies. 

Q And the recommendation of the Governor in the Budget 

Message was for 60 more in the next fiscal year? 

A Yes. 

Q How many periods or classes of riot control have 

been conducted so far? 

A I think this is our thirteenth class. 

Q And they've all been since the riots in Newark and Plain-

field of last July, is that right? 

A September, yes. 

Q And how many people overall have you trained? 

A Policemen, we've trained 590 some, but, as you know, we 

had National Guard and State Police who are either par-

ticipants or they are students or they are instructors 

in the course. In addition to this, we have had police 

departments and State Police departments from 14 dif-

ferent states that have attended our school, and the 
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school is nationally recognized. The school 

in Ft. Gordon, Georgia, was practically developed 

by the system we have in this State. 

Q Is this the only one of its kind in the United States? 

A Yes. 

Q And have you more or less broken it down pretty much into 

three equal parts, I mean the graduates pretty much divided 

into State Police, local police and National Guard? 

A No, sir, proportionately we felt that the emphasis should 

be with the municipal police because of time. The munici

pal police have 590 trained, all others may be 210 pro

portion. 

Q Do you personally have any feeling in regards to a law 

enforcement council or agency, whatever it might be called, 

such as somewhat along the lines that we used to have, 

but, perhaps, with a different type of organization now 

as to the size of it, composition of it and the staffing 

of it? 

A r~o, sir. 

Q I mean, are you for one or do you have any opposition to 

one? 

A If I knew the particular function or role .• I'm in the 

investigative end, anc if someone wants to investigate 

the investigative end, well, I just don't know what they 
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would_ be investigating. But I think within our structure, 

and the State's structure, we have filled in the gaps that 

formerly did exist in terms of organized crime, and this 

· t-.1ould be the function of the LEC to investigate all organ-

ized crime, or would it be an all-embracing thing, I just 

don't know. 

Q You feel that you are covering all those areas now ing 

State Police? 

A Yes 

Q That would be done by such a council? 

EXAMINATION 
BY SEN. THOMAS: 

Q A number of people have made the complaint that the 

leniency of judges in imposing sentences is contributing 

to the crime problem. Do you agree with that? 

A I can't go along with this in terms of gambling. The 

court has taken into consideration. The assignment judge 

has assigned one judge in every county to be the sentenc

ing judge, and I think this has kind of taken the so

called leniency away. 

If you are talking in the narcotics areas, 

where these things are discretionary with the judge, 

and far be it for me to say, "No, you are 
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right" or. "No you are wrong", he sits in the wisdom of the 

judicial robes, and'! assume he will properly adjudicate. 

Q There are sevetal bills now pending that impose severe 

minimum sentences in ·the area of narcotics and area•'·of 
' ':' ' ·'.,' ' .. ·, ·,; ,, '. ··~{~ 

· .. 
weapo"s.~nd the use of a weapon in a major crime. Do you 

agree with the philosophy of this type of legislation? 

A . From experience,some of the problems that we have 

are not with the judges. 

I'm concerned with the sympathy 

that the jurors may have in terms of real severe sentences, 

the judge, of course, c~uld wind up possibly with a 

yes/no decision on the part of the jurors, and this is 

what I'm thinking about. 

Q Forgetting about the judges for the moment, do you think 

that the severe minimum penalties will act as any kind 

of a deterrent to crimes in these areas, narcotics and 

weapons? 

A Let me categorize. •• - . ~· '1 •• :- . ' • 

we talk in the area of marijuana, amphetamines 

and the opiates. We find out that the opiates from our 

information remain the same, there is no up or down, 

the percentage is the same. 

T;he use of marijuana has gone up the 

degree or percentage, I don't know, but it has 
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severe penalities 
increased. Whether/ will be a deterrent or not, I 

don't know. We are talking now in the area of juvenile, 

high school and college. Whether the dare would still be 

there, whether the first try would still be there, whether 

the test will still be there, I don't know. I don't knmtJ 

whether this would be a deterrent or not. 

Q Well, these bills that impose the high maximums with 

respect to narcotics are designed to get the pushero und 

the non-narcotic or addict type pusher. Do you think it 

will have a deterrent effect in this area? 

A I assume that it will have a deterrent effect in this 

area. 

; ·;, 1 r-·~ ~, ~ • 
. J. '! ..• , L_,J A 

I ~.,·: . .:.. ·~·:; ·~.:.::·PJghout the State we do have high im:;idence 

of cr~ma ~elating to burglaries and larceny. In line 

with the last comments, with the last question, do 

you feel that severe, well, that increased penalty in 

this area is likely to have a looked-for result or the 

hopeful result of reducing the incidence of the Commis-

sion of this kind of crime? 

A Assemblyman, I don 1 t hnt•.!. I am not in ·!.:::. socialogical 
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ment end is that generally the man is in that partie-

ular venture, whether it be 

five years or ten years, would 

kind of go in that direction. 

Another 

big problem that I should have mentioned is hijacking 

throughout the State. This is part of the organized 

crime thing, and there has to be some concentration in 

this area too. 

But to answer your question, 

I really don't know, Mr. Owens, I don't know. 

C I have two more questions which are related, and mainly 

by way of information and your opinion. The first ques-

tion would be how many non-white members do you have in 

the State Police? Secondly, do you feel an increase in 

the number of non-white members would have any benefi-

cial result or any beneficial effect as to reduction 

of crime, particularly in the high density urban areas? 
more recruits 

A We have six non-white troopers. There are two/in the 

class right now. If we are talking about recruitment, 

we have conducted 

examinations ~hree times a year 
in 

throughout the State,jfour or five different place~~ 

We have list-

' 
~~ 

i 
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ings of all those agencies that we send these notifications 

to if we are talking recruitment. The president of the 

NAACP, the Manpower Development Training Program, American 

Legion, Veterans of Foreign Wars, Department of Defense, 

National Guard, Y.M.C.A.'s, plus announcements, radio 

announcements and television announcements throughout the 

State. 

Q Do these announcements also go to other police departments? 

A Yes. We are talking about radios, televisions, in post 

offices and we are going through the Division of Civil 

Rights, and they have a distribution in terms of six or 

seven hundred copies of these announcements here. Now, 

this is recruitment. 

And your second question 

was "Do you think that it would help?" 

Certainly, no question about 

it. And you can understand that we can use many, many 

more non-whites and we need them because there are 

areas that we just cannot penetrate and we need these 

boys. 

Q Are there any members at all of the Spanish speaking 

group that are members of the State Police? 

A Yes. 

Q How many? 



··-··-----·--·---------------

182 

A I just don't know. When you say "How many", I just don't 

know. 

Q Well, what I'm speaking of is not just those people who 

may have facilities o, speech but those people tuho 

are of Spanish decent. 

A That's what I'm talking about. We have some Irish people 

who speak Spanish. 

EXAMINATION 
BV SEN. RINALDI: 

Q Colonel, with respect to riot training assistance which 

had come up in tho discussion before, how is it determined 

which municipalities and which members of their force would 

be receiving special riot training in conjunction with 

State Police? 1 

out 
A We have worked I a system with the Chief of Police 

•: 

Association, and all applicants and all Epplications 

are given priority through the Chief of Police Associa-

tion. They had the original screening procgss. The 

first class we ran was strictly for chief of policG, 

and they include the applicants in the area of super-

vision, inspectors, captains, according to the size of 

the department, of course. 

Q Colonel, in your opinion are you satisfied that adequate 

riot training has been given to our respective municipal 
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police departments and police chiefs sufficient to meet 

any riot outbreak that may, unfortunately, occur this 

summer? 

A Let me say this to you, in terms of "Am I satisfied that 

they are trained to meet any situation", and we really 

don't know all of the situations, what type or kind of 

situation. I'm satisfied to this extent, that the police 

chiefs and the police supervisors are fortified with 

knowledge in terms of this is what should be done, this 

is what other people hove done, this 

Q 

is the best knowledge available concerning this 

particular situation. We deal in the area of a political 

decision as opposed ta' enforcement decision. Whether they 

will be permitted to use this knowledge or not is a home 

problem • 

Do you think regionalization, such as you've touched 

upon before could help in this area, could help with better 

tr8ining programs among contiguous police departments? 

A Yes, there are county 

associations where these police departments 

are joined together in compacts .• 

There are county schools, and they are joined 

together in this area. 

Q Colonel, I have one more question. We've touched very 
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little today basically on crime in the streets. We've 

talked mostly, I think, about organized crime and, of course, 

about civil disorders somewhat, and we have not talked 

about crime in the streets, the muggings, the rapings, 

the breakings and enterings, the things that make people 

want to stay off the streets at night. As the top-ranking 

police officer in the State, do you have any suggestions 

as to what can be done by the local police departments 

to implement this need, to help curb the tremendous 

growth of crime in the streets that the citizens arB 

most aware and concerned about? 

A Age:: ... :;, we are localizing now, and some towns do not have 

this problem, others do. NatLrnlly, it takes more and 

better policemen, better GlUipped and better trained 

policemen, trained in the area of -- not in the area of 

weaponry, but in the area of social training, in the 

area of supervision, being properly supervised, being 

properly directed, having a better intelligence within 

the area of problem, concentration of patrols, concen

tration of effort in particular areas of problems, a 

study of the times and the happenings and the types 

and kinds of happenings and a better rapor with the kind 

of people that reside in that particular area. 

Q Do you think the fragmentation of our police system 

•: 

* 
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as it is today, in some way, is responsible for 

this? In other words, take the problem of breaking and 

entering, the average small police force is in no way 

capable or equipped to pursue the crime of breaking and 

entering, especially in some of the smaller communities. 

Regionalization of police efforts, it seems to me, would 

be able to cope with this problem better than it is being 

done today, isn't that so? 

A I agree with you. Most counties now have communication 

systems that will tie together, communication wise, 

Q 

all police departments. This is a' part of regionaliza

tion, be it by communication or be it by support in any 

other way, but the regionalization has already taken 

turns in terms of communication. 

Do they share in their detective work? 

A They probably share in their intelligence. Now, one of 

the things that we contend and on~ of the things that 

we can do with the uniform crime reporting is to show 

where, when and how to concentrate and show municipali

ties that maybe do not have 

dialogue with one another. This is what we are trying 

to do. We have no comparative, this is our first year, 

but we have people that have to study these programs. 

The figures, the numbers mean nothing if the proper 
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analysis is not made, and we have to have people thet are 

knowledgeable in this area, people that can evaluate, 

people that can assess areas, people that can determine, 

and this we have. We have trained people, but we need 

more peoplr. It has to be done on a state level be-

cause of today's level, today's travel. We are working • 

with and closely aligned with all State Police in the 

New England areal in Pennsylvania and Delaware. Why it 

would take about an hour and 2 half to get from Pennsyl-

vania to New Jersey and f~ew York, :Jut you don't speed 

in New Jersey. But I am talking abt>ut cooperai!i-on. 

We~ can't close state doors to one another, 

because this extends right now to the highway system 

right through our state. We do happen to be the corridor 

state and we get all this travel and we have to have 

communications ~ith one another. This in itself is 

regionalization State Police wise that we are working 

on. 

SEN. WALDDR: No questions. 

• EXAMINATION 
BV MR. LUMBARD: 

Q Colonel, does the State Police prepare a routine and 

briefing for the Governor and the Attorney General on 

organized crime in New Jersey? 
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A I meet with the Attorney General in the organized crime 

area. I would assume that the Attorney General meets with 

the Governor --

Q I'm certain of that in terms of relating. But the State 
• 

Police does not personally brief the Governor on the con-

• ditions of organized crime in the State, I gather? 

A Say that again? 

Q Does the State Police d~rectly brief the Governor on the 

conditions of organized crime in New Jersey? 

A We brief the Attorney General. In fact, we meet Mondays 

in the Attorney General's office and the briefing takes 

place there. 

Q Do you prepare that report in writing, or is your state~ 

ment oral? 

• A I bring the people that are concerned in that particular 

area with me. Long ago I learned that you cannot be 

an al1-man, and I do not know everything, so the specifics 

and the reason for it, I bring the man concerned in that 

area • 
• 

Q In other words, you do not prepare regular written reports, 

which is either for the Attorney General or could be 

passed on by him to the Governor on organized crime? 

A He takes the notes and he can get the reports . 
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Q The disorder report mentions a State Police report called 

"Surveys of Cities," what is that? 

A When we started this UCR program, we started it probably 

six months before the legislation was passed, and this 

is how we determined how many police departments, the 

size of the police departments, the equipment that the 

police department h2d, the facilities that the police 

department had, snd thi:J iR !T~H:J Lm gathered this information. 

Q Did that program just stert? 

A No, sir, we started in 19:5. The L;C:R is one program. 

If you oro t2l:dng F',b!Jut tllEl civil disordc::, we have 

gathered all of that for civil. disorder information. 

Q On page 176 of the Civil Disorder Report ~here is a call 

for the State to develop a master plan to react to any 

further disturbances. Has that msster plan been prepared? 

A If it has, I know nothing of it. 

MR. LUMBARD: Thank you. 

COL. KELLY: We are working 

on a policy with regard to the Governor in relationship 

to municipalities and the State, but the maetar plan I 

don't know about. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: Do you have 

anything fu~ther to close with, Col. Kelly? 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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COL. KELLY: No. 

SEN. FORSYTHE: We appreciate 

your attendance here and we will try and work out this 

executive session situation and be in touch in terms of 

I think with that we can 

declare the hearing closed for this afternoon until 

tomorrow morning at 10:00 A.M. in this room • 



• 
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